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I N DEPEN DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Albemarle, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activit ies, the business-type activit ies, the discretely presented component units, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Albemarle, North
Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010 which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements as l isted in the table of contents. These financral
statements are the responsibil i ty of City of Albemarle's management. our
responsibil i ty is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Albemarle ABC Board and the
Albemarle Downtown Development Corporation. Those financial statemenrs were
audited by other auditors' whose reports thereon has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Albemarle ABC Board and
the Albemarle Downtown Development Corporation is based solely on the reports of
the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepteo In
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contarned
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtarn
reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of
material misstatement. The financial statements of the Albemarle ABC Board and the
Albemarle Downtown Development Corporation were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Sfandards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall f inancial statement presenralon
We believe that our audit and the report of the other auditors provrde a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Albemarle, North Carolina as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes rn
financial position and cash flows, where appropriate, thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformitv with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

P : n o  1' ' Y v

Member American lnstitute of Cenified Public Accountants North Carolina Association of Certified public Accounrants
www.as\1-ct_r , I .00ln



ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated October 25,2010 on our consideration of City of Albemarle's internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants. The purpose of the report is to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Sfandards and should be read in conjunction with this repon rn
considering the results of our audit.

Management's Discussion and Analysis and the Law Enforcement Officers' Special
Separation Allowances and the Other Postemployment Benefits Schedules of Funding
Progress and Schedule of Employer Contributions on pages 3 through 11 and 4g
through 51 respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit this
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the f inancral
statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the City of
Albemarle, North Carolina. The introductory information, combining, and individual
nonmajor fund f inancial statements and schedules and statist ical tables as well as the
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards as required by
U.S. Off ice of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Locat
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit
lmplementation Act, are presented for purposes of addit ional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic f inancial statements. The combining and individual nonmalor
fund f inancial statements and the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
and State awards have been subjected to the audit ing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic f inancial statements and, in our opinion, are fair ly stated in al l  material
respects, in relation to the basic f inancial statements taken as a whole.

Mfuw,{.<(Poct
October 25,2010
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Albemarle, we offer readers of the City of Albemarle's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Albemarle for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 201Q. We encourage readers to read the information presented here in
conjunction with addit ional information that we have furnished in the City's f inancial statements, which
follow this narrative

Financia l  Highl ights

o The assets of the City of Albemarle exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by
$69,645,618.

o The government's total net assets increased by $9,107,571, primari ly due to revenues
exceeding expenditures.

o As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Albemarle's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $3,995,575 a decrease of $2,369,441 in comparison with the
prior year. Approximately 43.6 percent of this total amount, or $1,742,006, is available for
spending at the government's discretion. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund
balance for the general fund was $1,423,670, or 11.2 percent of total general fund expenditures
for the fiscal year.

o The City of Albemarle's total debt decreased by $146,843 during the current f iscal year. The
key factor in this increase is the debt payments exceeding new debt additions.

o The City of Albemarle maintained it's A bond rating for the twelveth consecutive year.

Overuiew of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to City of Albemarle's basic
f inancial statements. The City's basic f inancial statements consist of three components; 1)
government-wide f inancial statements, 2) fund f inancial statements, and 3) notes to the f inancial
statements. The basic financial statements present two different views of the City through the use of
government-wide statements and fund f inancial statements. In addit ion to the basic f inancial
statements, this report contains other supplemental information that wil l  enhance the reader's
understanding of the f inancial condit ion of the City of Albemarle.
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Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide
Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the City's f inancial
status.

The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 9) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus
on the activities of the individual parts of the City's government. These statements provide more detail
than the government-wide statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the
governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund
statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements
explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental
information is provided to show detai ls about the City's individual funds. Budgetary information
required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of
the City's f inances, similar in format to a f inancial statement of a private-sector business. The
government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the City's financial status
as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net
assets are the difference between the City's total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is
one way to gage the City's f inancial condit ion.
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The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2)
business-type activit ies; and 3) component units. The governmental activit ies include most of the
City's basic services such as public safety, parks and recreation, and general administration. property
taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The businesstype activities
are those that the City charges customers to provide. These include the water and sewer, electric
services, landfill services, and public housing offered by the City of Albemarle. The final category is
the component unit.  Although legally separate from the City, the ABC Board is important to the City
because the City exercises control over the Board by appointing its members and because the Board is
required to distribute its profits to the City. The Albemarle Downtown Development Corporation is
another example of a component unit that is legally separate from the City, but the City exerclses
control over the Board.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund f inancial statements (see Figure 2) provide a more detai led look at the City's most signif icant
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Albemarle, like all other
governmental entit ies in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or
non-compliance) with f inance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the City's
budget ordinance. All  of the funds of City of Albemarle can be divided into four categories:
governmental funds, special revenue funds, proprietary funds, and f iduciary funds.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City's basic services
are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted
into cash f low in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that wil l  be available for spending in the
next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified 

-accruat

accounting which provides a short-term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial
statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more
or less f inancial resources available to f inance the City's programs. The relationship between
government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and
governmental funds is described in a reconcil iat ion that is a part of the fund f inancial statements.

The City of Albemarle adopts an annual budget for i ts General Fund, as required by the General
Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the
City, the management of the City, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and
how to pay for them. lt also authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these
current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how
well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded in providing
the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the
budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and classifications
as the legal budget document. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted
by the board; 2) the f inal budget as amended by the board; 3) the actual resources, charges to
appropriat ions, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between
the final budget and the actual resources and charges. To account for the difference between the
budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences
in the reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.
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Special Revenue Funds - The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources (other than special assessments, expendable trusts or major capital projects)
that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The City has numerous special
revenue and capital project funds within the governmental fund types, those being the Comprehensive
Bicycle Grant Fund, E.E. Waddell Renovation Fund, Recreation Grant Fund, Grant Fund, Clean Water
Management Trust Grant Fund, Brownfield Assessment Coalit ion Fund, Morrow Chase CDBG Fund,
Justice Assistance Grant Fund, Synder Greenway Capital Project Fund and the CDBG Alfred Street
Capital Project Fund. These funds are combined in the accompanying f inancial statements in the B-
exhibits.

Proprietary Funds - City of Albemarle has four different proprietary funds. Enterprise Funds are useo
to report the same functions presented as businesstype activities in the government-wide financial
statements. City of Albemade uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer activity, its
electr ic, landfi l l  and public housing operations. These funds are the same as those functions shown in
the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Albemarle's own
programs. The accounting used for the fiduciary funds is much like that used for the proprietary funds.
The City of Albemarle has one Fiduciary Fund, which is an Agency Fund.

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
ful l  understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund f inancial statements. The
notes to the financial statements are on pages 22 through 47 of this report.

Other Information - In addit ion to the basic f inancial statements and accompanying notes, this report
includes certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Albemarle's progress in
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary
information can be found on page 48 through 51 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As year-to-year f inancial information is accumulated on a consistent basis, changes in net assets may
be observed and used to discuss the changing f inancial posit ion of the City as a whole.

The fol lowing table provides a summary of the City's net assets:

The City of Albemarle's Net Assets

Governmental Activit ies
2010 2009

Business-tvoe Activi t ies Totals
2010 2oo9 2o1o 2oO9

Current and other assets
Capital assets

Total assets

Long-term l iabi l i t ies
Other l iabi l i t ies

Total l iabi l i t ies

Net assets
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net assets

$  6 ,287,844 $  9 ,578,756 $  19 ,189,175 $  19 ,202,93s  $  25 ,477,O1g $  28 ,781,691
16.558.639 18.512.613 45.439.264 37.972,047 61,997,903 56.484.660
22.846.483 28.091 .369 64,628,439 57 j74s82 87.474,922 as.zoossr

3 ,347,884 3 ,3 '19 ,879 7 ,367,966 7 ,355,699 10 ,715,850 10 ,675,578
2.471.111 3.456,384 4.642.343 4.596.342 7.113.454 8.052J26
5,818,995 6.776.263 .12,010,309 11.952.041 17.829.304 nza3u

14,165,960 15,783,772 41 ,490,312 33,533,372 55,656,272 49.317.144

2.861 .528 5,531 ,334 11.127.818 1 1 ,689,569 13,989.346 17 .220.903
$-11*927488 --2l3t5J!6 $--52s1!;130 $-a5222j41 $_6gs4sfle ssqsra,oaz
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As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial
condit ion. The assets of the City of Albemarle exceeded l iabi l i t ies by $69,645,618 as of
June 30, 2010. The City's net assets increased by $3,107,571for the f iscal year ended June 30, 2010.
The City of Albemarle uses capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending. Although the City of Albemarle's investment in i ts capital assets
is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be
provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to l iquidate these l iabi l i t ies.

Several particular aspects of the City's financial operations positively influenced the total unrestricted
governmental net assets:

o Continued di l igence in the collection of ad valorem property taxes by maintaining a percentage
of 95.59%, which is comparable to the statewide average.

. Continued low cost of debt due to the City's favorable bond rating.

o Continued recovery of bad debt due to the State's Debt Set-off Program.

The fol lowing table provides a summary of the City's changes in net assets.

The City of Albemarle's Changes Net Assets

Governmental Activit ies
2010 2009

Business-tvoe Activit ies Totals

Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for services
contr ibutions
contr ibutions

General revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
lnterest earned

Other
Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Environmental protection
Economical development
Culture and recreation
Interest on long{erm debt
Water and sewer
Electric
Landfi l l
Publ ic housing

Total expenses

Increase in net assets before
transfers

Transfers

lncrease in net assets
Net assets, July 1
Prior perrod adjustment (Note 7)
Net assets, June 30

2010 2009

$ 37 ,519,388 $  35 ,039,254
1,980,201 1,987,259
1 ,1 84,645 142,033

nu.r t .  , , , , rn i
3,430,815 1 ,976.584

44.211.302 39,356.328

zu tu  zuuv

$ 38 ,377,317 $  35 ,921,069
2,009,832 2,016,327
2,746,351 1 ,417,597

5,661,574 5 ,726,659
3,919,861 4 ,072,514

151 ,847 375,751
3.531 .723 2.415.097

56.398.505 51 .945.014

1,632,156 1 ,940,740
6,470,518 6 ,458,307
2,215,974 2,499,538
1,072,326 1 ,134,866

35,426 162,642
1,147,193 1 ,354,434

130,530 125,608
7 ,482,155 6 ,680,182,

27 ,983,274 27,013,965
2,248,007 1,721 ,219
2.873.375 2,598.603

53,290.934 51 ,690.1 04

$ 857,929
29,631

1 , 5 6 1 , 7 0 6

5,661,574
3 , 9 1 9 , 8 6 1

55,594
100.908

12.187,203

1 ,632,1  56
6,470,518
2,215,974
1,072,326

35,426
1 , 1 4 7 , 1 9 3

1 30,530

12.704,123

(516,920)

(3,770,698)

(4,287,618)
21 ,31  5 ,1  06

----------------
$ t1j27A88

q  R R 1  q l q

29,068
1,275,564

5,726,659
4072,514

164,553
438.513

12.588.686

1,940,740
6,458,307
2,499,538
1 ,134,866

162,642
1,354,434

125,608

-:
1 ?  A 7 A  1 ? F=ry

(1 ,087,449)

1 .466.250

3,528,801
1 7  7 A A  1 n ' F

3.1 50,000
$_zr3r5j_06

, orr.,ui u,ueo,,, u,
27 .983,274 27,013,965
2,248,007 1,721 ,219
2.873.375 2,598.603

40.586.81  1  38 ,013,969

3,624,491 1,342,359

3,770.698 (1 .466.250)

7 ,395,189 (3 ,273,891)
45,222,941 43,931,889

$ l2sl3;130 $_a5222541

3,107.571 254.910
66,538,047 61,718,194

$_69s455r8 $i6_538317

3,107,571 254,910
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Governmental activit ies. Governmental activit ies decreased the City's net assets by $4,287,6t9,
thereby accounting for all of the total growth in the net assets of the City of Albemarle. Key elements
of this decrease are as follows:

o Transfers to other funds of $3,770,696

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the City of Albemarle's net assets by
$7,395,189, accounting for al l  of the total reduction in the business's net assets. Key elements of this
increase are as follows:

. Transfers from other funds of $3,770,696
o Increase in donated assets of $2,165,554

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds
As noted earl ier, the City of Albemarle uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Albemarle's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the City of Albemarle's f inancing requirements. Specif ical ly, unreseryed fund
balance can be a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of
the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Albemarle. At the end of the current f iscal
year, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $2,063,699, while total fund balance reached
$3,862,917. As a measure of the general fund's l iquidity, i t  may be useful to compare both unreserved
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents
16.2 percent of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 30.3 percent of
that same amount.

At June 30, 2010, the governmental funds of City of Albemarle reported a combined fund balance of
$3,995,575, a 59.3 percent decrease over last year. Included in this change in fund balance are
increases in fund balance in the General and Capital Projects Funds.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the f iscal year, the City revised the budget on several
occasions. Generally, budget amendments fal l  into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to
adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is
available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as
Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriat ions that become necessary to maintain
services.

. The City appropriated funds for the new city hall project
o The City appropriated funds for the ee waddell renovations project
o The City appropriated funds for recreation grant fund
o The City appropriated debt proceeds for the telephone system and core switch
. The City appropriated funds for the clean water management trust grant fund
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Proprietary Funds. The City of Albemarle's proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Water and
Sewer Fund at the end of the f iscal year amounted to $1 ,748,115, those for the Electr ic Fund
amounted to  $9,321 ,513,  Publ ic  Housing $1,339,396,  and for  the Landf i l l  Fund $(1,281 ,206) .  The to ta l
increase (decrease) in net assets for al l  funds was $2,438,032, $4,370,882, $675,975, and $(8g,700),
respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of these two funds have already been addressed
in the discussion of the City of Albemarle's business-type activit ies.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Albemarle's investment in capital assets for i ts governmental and
business-type activit ies as of June 30, 2010, totals $61,997,903 (net of accumulated depreciation).
These assets include buildings, roads and bridges, land, machinery and equipment, park faci l i t ies, and
vehicles.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the fol lowing:

o Opening of the renovated and expanded City Hall

.  Major renovations to the E.E. Waddell Community Center

. Completion of Phase l l  of the Roger F. Snyder Greenway

o Replacement of four Police Department vehicles

o Uniforms and protective clothing replacement in the Fire Department

. Replacement of the City's computer network core switch and other hardware

. Replacement of City's Voice over Internet Protocol Telephone system due to the expiration of
current lease

. Replacement of City's time clock system

. Completion of City's Comprehensive Bicycle Plan

. Part icipation in the development of a Countywide Recreation Plan spearheaded by the City's
Parks and Recreation Department

. Replacement of several desktop computers throughout the City as recommended by the lT
Division

o Resurfacing several City Streets

o Acquisition of property for future relocation of Fire Station TwoMest Area Community Police
office

o Continued replacement of flocculators at US 52 Water Treatment Plantaging sewer lines to
address inflow and infiltration

o Continued inflow and infiltration improvements to the sanitary sewer system

. Completion of cleaning of the aeration basins at the WWTP
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Land
lnfrastructure
Other improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Mobile equipment
Construction in progress

Total

Addit ional information
Statements.

on the City's capital assets can

$ 495,092 $ 495,092
11,936,240 10,497,738

314,757 331 ,914
26,344,367 20,066,686

1 ,567 ,124 1  .769.413
1,046,604 668,354
3.735.080 4j42.850

s4tu$92Qr $7.912J47

be found in note 3. A.

City of Albemarle's Capital Assets
Net of Accumulated Depreciation
Governmental Activitres Business{vpe Activities
2010 2009 2010 2009

Totals
2010 2009

$ 2,948,071 $ 2,842,092
15,021 ,261 13,078,422

688,312 660.685
33,298,734 23,523,482
2,395,937 2,422,998
2,093,208 1 .937.592
5.552,380 12 ,019,389

$ 6r-997t03 $_56.4&1660

of the Basic Financial

$ 2,452,979
3,085,021

6,954,367
828,813

1,046,604
1 , 8 1 7 , 3 0 0

$16J58*639

$ 2,347,000
2,580,684

328,771
3,456,796

1,269,238
7,876,539

$t_8ji2$r3

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2010, the City of Albemarle had total paid back al l  their bonded debt

City of Albemarle's Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds

Governmental Activi t ies

General obl igation bonds

2010 2009

s _  -  s

Business{vpe Activit ies
2010 2009

s _

Totals
2010 2009

s

Gity of Albemarle's Outstanding Debt
The City of Albemarle's total debt decreased $146,843 (1.6%) during the past f iscal year, primarity due
to debt payments exceeding additional debt. The City of Albemarle does however owe $1 ,263;137 on
an inter-fund loan for the addition and renovation to the Public Safety Facility issued by the
water/sewer and electric departments.

As mentioned in the f inancial highlights section of this document, the City of Albemarle maintained it 's
43 rating with Moody's Investor Service and A rating from Standard and Poor's Corporation. This bond
rating is a clear indication of the sound f inancial condit ion of the City of Albemarle. This achievement
is a primary factor in keeping interest costs low on the City's outstanding debt.

North Carolina general statutes l imit the amount of general obl igation debt that a unit of government
can issue to 8% of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's
boundaries. The legal debt margin for City of Albemarle is $78,646,235.

Addit ional information regarding the City of Albemarle's long-term debt can be found in note 3 .B.
beginning on page 43 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The fol lowing key economic indicators reflect the current underlying economic condit ions surrounding
the City of Albemarle.

The unemployment rate in Stanly County is in l ine with the state average of 1 1 .2o/o; the civi l ian
labor force estimates for North Carolina reports the Stanly County unemployment rate is 12.4o/o',
the national average is 9.5%.
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Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011
Governmental Activities: Property taxes will remain at 0.56 per $100 valuation for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2011. This budget represents an overall decrease of 4.5o/o with more than 52o/o of the
total General Fund budget being al located to the Police and Fire Departments. There is no increase in
business l icense fees, however this includes an increase in the household sol id waste col lection fee,
which would increase from $5.45 per month to $8.75 per month. This would st i l l  only cover
approximately 60% of the cost of col lection of household garbage, trash, yard waste, and leaves. An
increase in household sol id waste disposal fees is also proposed, from $3.15 per month to $3.90 per
month which wil l  cover 10Oo/o of this cost. A sl ight increase is also recommended in the business rol l
out charge, from $7.00 to $7.20 per month. The budget also includes increases in planning and zoning
fees to recover more of the out of pocket costs associated with these items, although the fees will still
not cover all of these costs. Also proposed are new fire inspections and plans review fees to help
cover the costs of these services.

The Powell Bi l l  Fund is proposed at $595,000 which is a 3.8% decrease from the current Powell Bi l l
Budget. The current year Powell Fund Budget represented a decrease of 18% from the prior year.
This budget includes $75,000 for asphalt resurfacing and street repairs, a reduction of 25o/o from the
FY 2009-10 budget. This follows a decrease of funds for resurfacing of 50% from the prior year.

Business-Type Activit ies: The Water and Sewer Budget is proposed at $6,572,050, which is a
decrease of 6.6% for FY 2009-10. I have recommended no increase in the minimum charges for water
and sewer. This means that small users wil l  see no increase or a very small increase in their monthly
bi l ls. I  am recommending an increase of 4.5o/o in water and sewer rates for usage above the minimum.
The need to maintain the City's aging uti l i ty infrastructure and an increasingly str ingent regulatory
environment are the primary reasons for these recommended increases. Costs for utility relocation for
NC 24-27, US Highway 52, and the NC 73 bridge replacement which are required by the North
Carolina Department of Transportation are included in the budget. The budget also includes SO% of
the match required for the $1 mil l ion grant and $3 mil l ion loan for major improvements at the Long
Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant. The second half of this match wil l  be budgeted in 2Q11-12. The
Water and Sewer Budget also includes funds to continue the replacement of flocculators at the US 52
Water Treatment Plant and for the f inancing of the replacement of an aging backhoe in the Systems
Division.

The Electric Fund has a proposed budget of $29,829,050. This represents an increase of 2.5o/o over
the current year. The City will receive from the North Carolina Municipal Power Agency One a
wholesale rate increase of 5.2% effective July 1 ,2010. The budget proposes a retail rate adjustment
of either 4.2o/o effective July 1,2010 or a4.5o/o adjustment effective October 1,2010 to part ial ly offset
the wholesale rate increase we are receiving. The recommended budget el iminates funding for ful l
time contract crews that provided construction services for the Electric Division during the past few
years. l t  includes funding to replace a pickup truck and a service truck.

The Solid Waste Disposal Fund budget is proposed at $2,117,100 for the FY 2010-11, which
constitutes a decrease of approximately 2o/o from the current year. I am recommending a $2 per ton
increase in the municipal sol id waste disposal fee, from $33 to $35; and an increase in the construction
and demolition fee from $30 to $32. These fee increases are needed to pay the debt service on the
Landfill expansion recently completed and to offset decreases in Landfill revenues due to the economy.
Both of these disposal rates will remain competitive with rates of other facilities in North Carolina.

Req uests for lnformation
This report is designed to provide an overview of the City's finances for those with an interest in this
arca. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional
information should be directed to the Directorof Finance, City of Albemarle, P.O. Box 190, Albemarle,
North Carolina 28002.
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF NETASSETS

Exhibit 1

June 30. 2010

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Taxes receivable - net
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments

Internal balances
lnventories
Deferred charges
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Note receivable

Capital assets
Land, and construction in progress

Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total capital assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current l iabi l i t ies

Accounts payable and accrued l iabi l i t ies
Deposits
Unearned earnings
Current port ion of long{erm l iabi l i t ies
Accrued interest payable

Total current l iabi l i t ies

Longterm l iabi l i t ies
Accrued landfill closure and oostclosure costs
Long-term l iabi l i t ies:

Due in more than one vear

Total longterm l iabi l i t ies

Total l iabi l i t ies

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Working capital
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

Primary Government Comgonent Units

$  4 ,121 ,744

546,276
356,013

1,665,802
(1,264,735)

17,002

45,742

5,487,844

800,000

$ 10 ,701 ,954

4,587,469
R  ? ? 4

1,264,735
2,602,027

4,277
20,378

1 9 ,  1  89 ,1  75

$ 14 ,823,698

546,276
4,943,482
1,674,137

2,619,029
4,277

66,1  20

24,677,019

800,000

8,500,451
53,497.452

4,000,1  1  8
5 1 8 , 3 3 0

1,O44,459
1 , 5 4 9 , 6 1 5

Y5Z

7,113,454

Albemarle
Downtown

Development
Corporation

$ 73,608

47,00;

550

106,508

669,009

4,778_

7,252
2,149

14,179

City of
Albemarle
ABC Board

$  2 9 , 9 1 0

t o z

2 1 6  1 o ;

6 . 1 4 1

252,316

261 ,417
962.767

1,224,184

1 , 2 2 4 , 1 8 4

1,476,500

1 39 435

I  uo .  JoY

245.804

245,804

Total

121 ,158

4,270,279 4,230.172
12,288,360 41 ,209,092

16,558,639

17,358,639

22,846,483

701 ,948
1 , 4 0 0

1,038,554
729,209

45,439,264

45,439,264

64,628,439

3,298, I  70
516,930

820,406
932

2,471,111 4 ,642,343

- 3,447,837

3,347,884 3,920,129

3,347,884 7,367,966

5 , 8 1 8 , 9 9 5  1 2 , 0 1 0 , 3 0 9

14,165,960 41  ,490,312

2,861 ,528 11  ,127 ,818

$11,0n,49e 9l?,61!,!q

61,997,903 775,517

62,797,903 775,517

87,474,922 896,675

3,447,837

7,268,013 62,313

1 0 , 7 1 5 , 8 5 0  6 2 , 3 1 3

17,829,304 76,492

55,656,272 733,505 1,117.815
b5,b  /u

13,9q9,346 86,678 47 ,211

$_99,619,61q S__!?Q,l!q q G99,69q

The notes to the financial statements are an integral paft of this statement Page 12
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2010

Exhibit 3

Maior Fund

General

City Hall
Capital Project

Fund

Total
Non-Major

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

4,121 ,744

546,276
3s6,013

1,665,802
5 1 4 , 0 1 9

17,002
45,742

800,000

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net

Taxes
Accounts
Due from other governments

Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Note receivable

Total assets

Liabi l i t ies and fund balances

Liabi l i t ies
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deposits
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Unearned revenue

Total l iabi l i t ies

Fund balances
Reserved for

Inventories
Prepaids
State statute
Streets - Powell Bill

Unreserved, reported in
General Fund

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures
Undesignated

Capital Projects Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Total fund balances

Total l iabi l i t ies and fund balances

7.375,503 $  1 5 0 , 1 9 2 540.903 $ _ !pq6,5e8

4,035,192

546,276
205,821

1 ,211 ,451
5 1 4 , 0 1 9

17,002
45,742

800.000

$ 657,530
1,400

1,264,735
550,367

1,038,554

3,512,586

17,002
45,742

1,417,272
319,202

1 3 0 , 1 0 1
1 0'12 (oe

1 50,1 92

$ 475

104.925

'105,400

86,552

454,35;

$ 43,943

409,094

$ 701,948
1 , 4 0 0

1,778,754
550,367

1,038,554

4,071,O23

44.792

3,862,917 44,792

7.375,503 $  1 5 0 , 1 9 2

453,037

454.351

(62,882\
(303,603) (303,603)

87,866 ? ooq 67(

$ 8 ,066,598

16,558,639

550,367

(589,e00)
(410,298)
(684,216)

(2,392,679)

$  17 ,027,488

17,002
45,742

1,871,623
319,202

1 30 ,1  01
1,933,598

(18,090)

540,903

Reconciliation of fund balance as reported in the balance sheet - governmental funds with
net assets - governmental activities
Fund balance as reported in the balance sheet - governmental funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are notfinancial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore,
are deferred in the funds

Compensaled absences not expected to be materially liquidated with expendable available
resources

Net pension obl igations
Other postemployment benefits
Long{erm liabilities, principally installment purchases and accrued interest payable, are not

due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds

Net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement Page 14



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEND'TURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Exhibit 4

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Maior Fund
Ci ty  Hal l

Capital Project
FundGeneral

Total
Non-Major

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds
Revenues

Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses

Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental

Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current

General government
Public safety
Public works
Environmental orotection
Economic and physical development
Cultural and recreation

Debt service:
Principal
lnterest

Capi ta lout lay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Proceeds from installment fi nancinq

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - end of vear

$ 5,554,762
273,170

3,647,851
673,748
37,951

819 ,978
48,571

100,908

1  1 ,156 ,939

1 ,601 ,348
6,309,238
2,125,370
1  ,1  10 ,076

1,064,349

417 ,180
130 ,530

12,758,O91

(1  ,601  ,152 )

1,402,000
(1,409,979)

8 1 , 0 1 7

73,038

(1,528,114)

5 ,391 ,031

$  3 ,862 ,917

7.022

7,022

2,492,O80

2,492,O80

(2,485,058)

1,660,000

1,660,000

(825,058)

869,850

s 44,792

917 ,589

;

917 ,590

114 ,111

35,42;

1,202,301

1 ,351 ,838

(434,248)

440,979
(23,000)

417 ,979

$ 5,554,762
273,170

3,647,851
1 , 5 9 1 , 3 3 7

37,951
819 ,978

55,594
100,908

12,08' l  ,551

1 ,601 ,348
6,423,349
2,125,370
1  ,1  10 ,076

35,426
1,064,349

417 ,180
130,530

3,694,381

16,602,009

(4,520,458)

3,502,979
(1,432,979)

81,O17

2,151,017

(16,269) (2,369,441)

104 ,135  6 ,365 ,016

$ 87,866 $ 3,995,575

The notes to the financial statements are an integral paft of this statement Page 15



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 'A'

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit 5

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay
Depreciation
Asset disposals
Asset transfers
Asset reclassifications

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds

Taxes including interest and penalties
Other deferred revenues

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds

Compensated absences
Current pension cost
Other postemployment benefits

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long{erm debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net assets. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in
the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long{erm debt and related items.

Total changes in net assets of governmental activities

$ (2,369,441)

3 ,966,717
(7s6,406)
(100,053)

(5,840,698)
776,466

1 0 6 , 8 1 2
( 1  , 1 6 0 )

(42,sle)
(23,9e3)

(339,505)

336,1 62

qi,28lptg

The notes to the financial statements are an integral paft of this statement. Page 16



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES ''V FUND BALANCE. BUDGET AND ACTTJAL

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Exhibit 6

General Fund

Original
Budget

$ 5,688,500
263,400

3,680,1  50
655,950
52,800

820,350
128,000
25,150

1 1 , 3 1 4 , 3 0 0

1,757,750
6,468,448
2,237,750
1 , 2 5 1 , 9 5 0
1 , 1 0 4 , 0 0 0

480,752
200,000

13,500,650

(2 ,186,350)

1 ,390,000
(25,000)

1 ,365,000

821,350

$

$5,688,500
263,400

3,680,1  50
655,950
52,800

820,350
128,000
49.446

1 1 , 3 3 8 , 5 9 6

1,839,582
6,516,744
2,227,750
1 , 2 5 1 , 9 5 0
1  , 1  1 4 , 0 0 0

480,752
200,000

$ 5,5s4,762
273,170

3,647,851
673,748
37,951

819,978
48,571

100,908

1  1  , 1 5 6 , 9 3 9

Variance
With Final
Positive

(Negative)

$  (133,738)
9,770

(32,2ee)
17,798

(14,849)
(372)

(79,429)
51,462

( 1 8 1 , 6 5 7 )

F ina l
Budget Actual

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted i ntergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Permits and fees
Sales and services
lnvestment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current

General government
Public safety
Public works
Cultural and recreational
Environmental protection

Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total exoenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Capital lease obligations issued

Total other financing sources (uses)

Appropriated fund balance

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning as previously reported

Fund balance - end of vear

1 ,390,000
( 1 , 5 8 1 , 4 7 9 )

8 1 , 8 3 2

(109,647)

2,401,829

$

1,402,000
(1 ,40e,979)

81,017

73,038

(1,528,114)

5 , 3 9 1 , 0 3 1

$ 3 ,862,917

238,234
207,506
102,380
187,601

3,924

63,572

872,687

6 9 1 , 0 3 0

12,000
1 7 1 , 5 0 0

(815)

182,685

(2 ,401,829)

(1,528,114\

1 , 6 0 1 , 3 4 8
6,309,238
2,125,370
1,064,349
1 ,1  1  0 ,076

4 1 7 , 1 8 0
130,530

13,630,778 12,758,091

(2,292,182\ (1 ,601 ,152)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral paft of this statement Page 17



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEM ENT OF A/ET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30. 2010

Exhibit 7

Major Funds
Water and

Sewer Fund

$ s48,037
835,845

421.004
386,254

4,277

2,601 .987

139,933
27.763.920
27.903,853

$ 30,505,840

464,869

74,888

1  1 4 , 1 6 3
4.277

A q R  1 0 7.......................ry

74,889
234,949

R O ?  1  0 0

,1 raa.oat

1 .861.234

26,896,491
1.748,115

$ 28,644,606

$ 6 ,132,791
3,517,904

842,133
2,215,773

4.462
12.713.063

3 1 , 9 6 3
6.617.064
6.649.027

q lg99?,q9q

$  2 ,645 ,181
468 ,015

67,546

151 ,210

$ 2 ,176,309
197.925

1.621
2,375.855

3,621,325
1.049.957
4.671.282

$ 7,047,137

Department of
Public Housing

$ 1 ,444,817
? q  7 0 6

e  2 e E

1  q o A

7.72 ;
1.498.270

436,951
5.778.151
6.215.102

$ 7 ,713.372

$ 10 ,701 ,954
4,587,469

8,335
1,264,735
2,602,027

4,277
20.378

1  9 . 1  8 9 , 1  7 5

4,230,172
41 .209.092
45.439.264

$ 64,628.439

Electric
Fund

Landfill
Fund

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - net
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Inventories
Deferred charges
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets

Land, improvements and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total capital assets, net

Total assets

Liabi l i t ies
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences - current
General obligation bonds payable - current
Installment purchase agreements payable - current
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued landfill closure and postclosure costs
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefi ts
General obligation bonds payable - noncurrent (net)
Installment purchase agreements payable - noncurrent

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total l iabi l i t ies

Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net assets

?  2 Q 1  0 q '
-.....ry

67,547
143,261

1 ,723 ,906

1.934.714

5,266,666

4,773.911

9 . 3 2 1 . 5 1 3

$ 14,095,424

552.120

3,447,837
9,388

45,844

646,300

4,149,369

4.701 .489

3,626,854
(1 .281 .206\

$__?11l.41q

137,673
6,000

Y 3 Z

9,387

398,1  28

50,447
42,915

600

4.484
1 . 6 2 8

100.074

25,463
37,821

17.562

80.846

180.920

6,193,056
1,339,396

$ 7.532.452

$ 3 ,298,170
516,930

932
152,421

667,985
5.905

4.642.343

3,447,837
177.287
461,875

3,280,967

'12 .01  0 .309

41 ,490,312
1 1  . 1 2 7  . 8 1 8

$  5 2 , 6 1 8 , 1 3 0

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement Page 18



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPEA'SES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 'VETASSEIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Exhibit I

Major Funds
Water and

Sewer Fund
Electric

Fund

$ 6,240,988

t  2 6 , o z  t

..."...........ry

851 ,241_

1,567,51 ;
z ,zoo,zJ  I

1,344,001

1 . 4 1 7 . 4 5 0

7,446,443

(1 .076,628)

40,000
10,434

1,933,294

(35,712)
3.404

$ 28 ,394,156

1.157.997

29.552.153

1,045,423
185,050

2,824,090
23,374,734

488.1  49

27.917.446

1.634.707

Landfill
Fund

$ 2 ,455,316

2.509.041

2,009,766
198.422

2.208.188

300,853

27,410
(1s9,746)

6,602
(39,819)

Department of
Public Housing

D .

428,928
12.662

441.590

5 1 1 , 1 4 3

13,789
390,598
251 ,049

59,279
1,378,590

25,400_

243.367

2,873.215

(2.431 .625)

1 ,980,201

1 1 , 1 4 ;
(1  60)
(822)

$ 37,090,460
428,928

1 .353.21 1

38.872.599

2,407,807
185,050

2,824,090
23,374,734

1 , 5 6 7 , 5 1 4
2,266,237
1,344,001

1 3 , 7 8 9
390,598
251 ,049

cv ,z  t  Y

1,378,590
25,400

2,009,766
2,347,388

40.445,292

(1 .572,693)

1 ,980,201
67,410

(90,532)
2 , 1 6 5 , 5 5 4

96,253
( 1 4 1  , 5 1 9 )

2,582

4.079.949

2.507.256

1 ,117 ,235
(2,095,000)

7  ? O q  1 R O

Total
Operating Revenues

Charges for sales and services
Rental income
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Administrat ive
Customer service
Electrical operations
Electri power purchases
Water operations
Sewer operations
Systems division
Tenant services
Uti l i t ies
Ordinary Maintenance and operation
General expenses
Housing assistance payments
Nonroutine maintenance
Landfi l l  operations
Depreciation

Total operating expense

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Operating grants
Capital grants
Gain on disposal of assets
Donated assets
Investment earnings
Interest and other charges
Other nonoperating (expenses) income

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Capital contr ibutions
Transfers to other funds
Transfers from other funds

Change in net assets

Total net assets, beginning

Total net assets, ending

58,780
zJz ,zov

62,746
(65,828)

1 .967.179 287.958

890.551 1 .922.665

(375,000)  (1 ,495,00 ; )
1 ,922,481 3 .943.217

2,438,032 4,370,882

26,206,574 9.724.542

q4,64,6qq $ 4p9q,4?4

(165,553)  1 ,990,365

135.300 {d,41 .260\

_  1 ,117,235
(225,000)

(89,700)

2.435.348 6,856.477 45.222,941

$ 
-t,532,4a qlaqqlq

The notes to the financial stalemenls are an integral part of this statement

$ 2,345,648
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Exhibit I

For the Fiscal Year Ended June

Cash flows from operating activities.
Cash received from customers
Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services
Customer deoosits received
Customer deoosits returned
Other operating revenues

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating grants and subsidies
Due from other funds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Total cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets
Principal paid on bonds and installment purchase agreements
Interest paid on bonds and installment purchase agreements
Proceeds from installment fi nancing
Proceeds from sale of assets
Capital grants

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing
activities

Cash flows from investing actrvities:
Interest earned on investments

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities.
Deoreciation
Other nonoperating income

Changes in assets and l iabi l i t ies:
(lncrease) decrease in accounts receivable
(lncrease) decrease in prepaid expenses
(lncrease) decrease in inventory
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities

Increase (decrease) in customer deposits
Decrease (increase) in accrued compensated absences
Increase in postemployment benefi ts
Increase in accrued landfill closure and postclosure costs
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Enterorise Funds
Water Deoartment
ano

Sewer Fund Electric Fund
Landfill of
Fund Publ ic Total

$  6 ,062,710
(1,228,792)
(2 998,525)

128,827
1,964,220

40.211
1,922,481
(375,000)

1,587,692

(4,387,839)
( 1  0 6 , 1 6 1  )
(35,712)
46,295

40.000

$ (1 ,076,628)

1,417,450
1,947j32

(307,1  05)
30,s94
1 6 , 1  0 8

(200,827)

1 q  2 6 1

122,145

$ 28,944,675
(25,910,363)
(2.227,450)

12,463
(94,733)

1 ,1 57,997
1,882,589

80,297
3,943,217

(1,495,000)
2,528,514

(4 ,381,699)
(142,753)
(65,828)
s7,869

$ 2,573,552
( 1  , 1  1 5 , 5 0 1  )

(624,6271'

$ ,72 ;
887, 1 49

27,410

(225,000)
( 1 97,590)

(87,093)
(390,1 67)
(39 ,819)
23,148
25,875

$ lJfgJqq

$ 300,853

198,422_

6 4 , 5 1 1
5 , 1  1 8

1 3 ,1  88

3,215
20,649

2 8 1 , 1 9 3

$ 41s ,032
(2,045,927]|

(574,964)

12,662
(2 ,1  93 ,1  97)

1 ,980,201
(1 s98)

1 ,978,603

( 1 , 1 4 3 , 5 9 5 )
( 1 , 1 0 2 )

(1 60)
23,148

$ 1,411,812

$ (2 ,431,625)

243,367
(822\

(34,893)
(2 ,s11)

6 , 1 4 6
2,683
4 , 5 1 0

18,925

1,023

$ 37,995,969
(30,300,583)
(6,425,566)

12,463
(94,733)

1 .353,21  1
2,540.761

2,007,611
1 1 8 , 9 1 0

5,865,698
(2.095,000)
5 ,897,219

(  10 ,000,226)
(640,1 83)
( 1 4 1 , 5 1 9 )
150,460
25,875

1,157.235

(9,448,3s8)

v b . z 5 J

$ 10 ,701 ,954

s  (1 ,572,693)

2.347,388
2,237,350

(894,790)
59,754

(  1 8 8 , 0 5 1 )

66,324
(69,762)
39,049

Z J J , Y / b

281 ,1  93
1,023

4,113,454

1 ,117 .235

(4,443,417) (4,s32,411)

15,759 62,746

(468.056) (4.474)

(875,746) (58,562) 228j05

1 1 , 1 4 6

(207,922) (91  4 ,1  2s)

1 ,823,783 6 ,191,353 1 ,948,204 1.652.739 11 .616.079

$ 948.037 9_ j.]!?J91

$ 1 ,634,707

488,149
291,040

(617,303)
26,553

(204,1 59)

247,817
(72,445)
15,973
72,257

3.040,848 247,882 586,296 238,428

$_Lgqzq $19!?,5!9 $__!gz.l!9 $l?.1!3.lsD L _?,qaJ91

lhe notes rc me trnanctal sfatemenls are an tntegral part of this statement P2da )n



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NETASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND

Exhibit 10

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Agency
Fund

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabi l i t ies:
Miscel laneous l iabi l i t ies

Total liabilities

4 1 7

4 1 7

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 21
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CIW OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
'VOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of Albemarle, North Carolina and its discretely presented component unrr
conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of
the more significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Albemarle, North Carolina, is a municipal corporation which is governed by an elected mayor and a
seven-member council. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements
present the City and its component units, legally-separate entities for which the City is financially accountable. The
discretely presented component units presented below are reported in a separate columns in the City's financial
statements in order to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City.

Albemarle Downtown Development Corporation

The Albemarle Downtown Development Corporation (ADDC) is a nonprofit organization dedicated to the
revitalization of the downtown area of the City of Albemarle. The majority of the ADDC's board of directors is
appointed by the City. The city also levies a municipal service district tax, which is distributed direcfly to the ADDC.
The ADDC and its wholly owned subsidiary, Market Station, Inc., have a June 30 year end, and the consolidated
financial information is presented as if it were a proprietary fund. Complete financial statements may be obtained
from the entity's administrative offices located at 157 North Second Street, Albemarle, N.C. 28001.

City of Albemarle ABC Board

The members of the ABC Board's governing board are appointed by the City. In addition, the ABC Board is
required by state statute to distribute its surpluses to the general fund of the City. The ABC Board, which has a
June 30 year-end, is presented as if it were a proprietary fund. Complete financial statements for the ABC Boaro
may be obtained from the entity's administrative offices located at 1446 U.S. Highway 52 North, Albemarle, North
Carol ina 28001.

The following organization is included in the City of Albemarle's financial statements:

Albemarle Department of Public Housinq

The Albemarle Department of Public Housing is a department of the City of Albemarle effective February g, 1gg1 ,
and is considered a proprietary fund and reported as an enterprise fund in these financial statements.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statemenfs. The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information
about the primary government and its component units. These statements include the financial activities of the
overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These
statements distinguish between the governmental and busrness-fype activities of the City. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
'VOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEA'TS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

B. Easis of Presentation (Continued)

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different businesstype activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statemenfs: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds. Separate
statements for each fund category - governmental and proprietary - are presented. The emphasis of funo
financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, result from non-exchange
transactions. Other non-operating revenues are ancillary activities such as investment earnings.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. The General Fund accounts for all
financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary revenue
sources are ad valorem taxes, State grants, and various other taxes and licenses. The primary expenditures
are for public safety, streets and highways, sanitation, parks and recreation, and general governmental services.

City Hall Capital Project Fund. This fund accounts for City transfers and other revenues to construct the new
City Hal l  Bui lding and faci l i t ies.

The City reports the following non-major governmental funds.

Comprehensive Bicycle Grant Fund. This fund is used to accumulate monies to assist in the comprehensive
planning of bicycle transportation.

E.E. Waddell Renovation Fund. This fund is used to account for grant monies restricted for the renovation of
the E.E. Waddell Center.

Recreation Grant Fund. This fund is used to account for grant monies restricted for parks and recreation
program expenses.

Grants Fund. This fund accounts for grant monies restricted for public safety program expenses.

CDBG Alfred Street Project Fund. This fund accounts for grant monies to facilitate the Alfred Street
Redevelopment Project.

Brownfield Assessment Goalition Fund. This fund accounts for grant monies for the study of brownfields.

Clean Water Management Trust Grant Fund. This fund accounts for grant monies for flood mitigation at long
creeK.

Morrow Chase CDBG Fund. This fund accounts for grant monies restricted for water/sewer and street
improvements.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Justice Assistance Grant Fund. This fund is used to account for grant monies restricted for use in public
safety improvements.

Synder Greenway Capital Project Fund. This fund accounts for grant monies to facilitate the Synder
Greenway redevelopment project.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Water and Sewer Fund. This fund is used to account for the City's water and sewer operations.

Electric Fund. This fund is used to account for the City's electric operations.

Municipal  Sol id Waste Landf i l l  Fund. This fund is used to account for the City 's landf i l l  operat ions.

Albemarle Department of Publ ic Housing. This fund is used to account for the City 's publ ic housrng
operations.

The City reports the following fund types:

Agency Fund. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating results.
An agency fund is used to account for assets the City holds on behalf of others. The City mainiains the
Municipal Service District, which accounts for tax revenues that the City is required to remit to the Albemarle
Downtown Development Corporation.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the City are maintained during the year using
the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Sfafemenfs. The government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide ano
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related casn
flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without direcfly receiving
(or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue
from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general  revenues include al l taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues for the City enterprise funos
are charges to customers for sales and services. The City also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of
tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the water and sewer system. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capltal assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues
and exoenses.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL|CtES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Sfatemenfs. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for principal and interest on general longterm debt, claims and judgments, and compensated
absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt ano
acquisitions under installment purchases are reported as other financing sources.

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for propeny
taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not susceptible to
accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered to be an available
resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the
procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina.
Effective with this change in the law, Stanly County is responsible for bill ing and collecting the property taxes on
registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts in the County, including the City
of Albemarle. For motor vehicles registered under the staggered system, property taxes are due the fiist day of
the fourth month after the vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which t-hey
become due. Therefore, the City's vehicle taxes for vehicles registered in Stanly County from March 2009
through February 2010 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Uncollected taxes that were bilted durinq
this period are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilities franchise tax collected and held by the
State at year-end on behalf of the City are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and salej ano
services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Grant
revenues which are unearned at year-end are recorded as unearned revenues. Under the terms of grant
agreements, the City funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement gfints,
categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are Ootn
restricted and unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. lt is the City's policy to first apply cost-
reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general
revenues.

As permitted by generally accepted accounting principles, the City has elected to apply only applicable FASB
Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do not contradict GASB
pronouncements in its accounting and reporting practices for its proprietary operations.

D. Budgetary Data

The City's budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted
for the General Fund and the Enterprise Funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal yeai-end. pro.lect
ordinances are adopted for the Special Revenue Funds, Capital Project Funds, and the Enterprise Capital prolect
and Capital Reserve Funds which are consolidated with the operating funds for reporting purposes. All budgets are
prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriationl at the
functional level for all annually budgeted funds and at the object level for the multi-year funds. Amendments are
required for any revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund or that change functional appropriations. All
amendments must be approved by the governing board. During the year, several amendments to the original
budget were necessary, the effects of which were not material. The budget ordtnance must be adopted by Jul/1 of
the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance
can be adooted.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC\ES (Continued)

E. Assefs, Liabilities and Fund Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the City, the ADDC, and the ABC Board are made in council-designated official depositories and are
secured as required by state law [G.S. 159-31]. The City, the ADDC, and the ABC Board may designate, as an
official depository, any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the City,
the ADDC, and the ABC Board may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts,
money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the City, the ADDC, and the ABC Board to invest in obtigations of the
United States or oblig,ations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of
the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority;
obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and
bankers' acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).

The City, the ADDC's and the ABC Board's investments with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and
non-money market investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of
the NCCMT Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which is
the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio's securities are valued at fair value. Money market
investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at amortized
cost.

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize investment
income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and
cash equivalents. The ADDC and the ABC Board consider all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents.

3. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

ln accordance with state law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the City levies ad valorem taxes on property other
than motor vehtcles on July 1.' , the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1 (lien date),
however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as
of January 1, 2009. As allowed by State law, the City has established a schedule of discounts that appty to taxes
which are paid prior to the due date. In the City's General Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported net of such
discounts.

4. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful
accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior
years.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assefs, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

5. Inventories and Prepaid ltems

The inventories of the City, the ADDC, and the ABC Board are valued at cost (first-in, first-out), which approximates
market. The Ci$'s General Fund inventory consists of expendable supplies that are recorded as expenditures as
used rather than when ourchased.

The inventories of the City's Enterprise Funds and the ADDC consist of materials and supplies held for subsequent
use. The inventories of the ABC Board consist of items held for resale. The cost of these inventories is exoensed
when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements and expensed as the items are useo.

6. Note Receivable

At June 30, 2008 the City attained a note receivable from Lill ian Mill Group, LLC in regards to the City's renovatons
to the Historic Lill ian Mills Building (Five Points Redevelopment Project). This note will be activated (earned) upon
completion of all improvements as contemplated in the legally binding commitment by the city. The anticipaiion
date of completion is march 2010. This note will be paid to the city with accrued interest in march 2015. This
transaction is currently recorded at the city as a note receivable and unearned revenue for $800,000.

7. Caoital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than a certain cosr
and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.

The City's purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the time of donation. Minimum capitalization costs
are $5,000 for the following types of assets: land, improvements, buildings, infrastructure, substations, lines,
plant and distribution systems, equipment and vehicles. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. General infrastructure
capital assets, including roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, and curbs and gutters are capitalized as
"fnfrastructure". General infrastructure capital assets acquired prior to July 1, 2004, or that received substantial
improvements subsequentto July1, 1980, are reported at estimated historical cost using deflated replacement
cost.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICtES (Continued)

E. Assefs, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

Capital assets used in the governmental and business{ype activities of the City are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Property and equipment of the ADDC are depreciated over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.

Property and equipment of the ABC Board are depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis
follows:

Asset Class

Bui ldings and lmprovements
Electric Distribution System
Water Distribution Lines
Sewer Distribution Lines
Infrastructure
Equipment
Vehicles

Asset Class

Equipment
Leasehold lmprovements

Estimated
Useful Lives

25-31 years
25 years

30-50 years
30 years

30-50 years
5-15 years
4-6 years

Estimated
Useful Lives

5-10 years
7 years

8. Lonq-TermObliqat ions

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well
as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method that
approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premiums or
discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related
debt.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. lssuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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NorE 1 - SUMMARY oF stcNtFtcANT AccouNTtNG poLtctES (continued)

E. Assefs, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

9. CompensatedAbsences

The vacation policies of the City provide for the accumulation of up to two hundred (200) hours earned vacation
leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. The number of maximum accumulated days depends onyears of service For the City's government-wide and proprietary funds an expense and a liability forcompensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned. The City has
assumed a first-in, first-out method of using accumulated compensated time. The portion of that time that rs
estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has been designated as a current liability in the government-wide
financial statements.

The Albemarle Downtown Development Corporation has no specific policy regarding accrual of earned vacatron
leave. The ADDc has no l iabi l i ty for unused vacat ion leave at June 30, zt j to.-

ABC Board employees may accumulate up to 20 days of earned vacation leave. Accumulated earned vacation
leave is included in accrued expenses.

The City's, the ADDC's, and the ABC Board's sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earneo
sick leave. Sick leave does not vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may oeused in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the City nOOC,'"nl tn"ABC Board have no obligation for accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave hasbeen made.

10. Net Assets/Fund Balances

Nef Assets

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints on resources
that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other gouernr"nt. o,.imposed by law through state statute.

Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance represent amounts that cannot beappropriated or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of iund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change.

State law [G.S. 159-13(bX16)] restricts appropriation of fund balance or fund equity for the subsequent year's
budget to an amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, 

"ndurOrln"",and deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as these amounts stand at the close of the fiscai y""i fr"""oingthe budget year.

The governmentalfund types classify fund balances as follows.

Reserued

Reserved by state statute - portion of fund balance, in addition to reserves for inventones, which is not available
for appropriation under state law [G S. 159-S(a)]. This amount is usuatly comprised ot aCcornls ;ltfiu"Or" 

"nointerfund receivables which have not been offset by deferred revenues.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assefs, Liabilities and Fund Equity (Continued)

10. NetAssets/Fund Balances (Continued)

Reserved for inventories. portion of fund balance is not available for appropriation because it represents the
year-end fund balance of ending inventories, which are not expendable, available resources.

Reserved for streets. Powell Bill - portion of fund balance that is available for appropriation but legally segregated
for street construction and maintenance expenditures. This amount represents the balance of the-total
unexoended Powell Bill funds.

Reserved for prepaid assets. portion of fund balance not available for appropriation because it represents a
deferred charge which is not an expendable, available resource.

Unreserued

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures - portion of the total fund balance available for appropriation that
has been designated for the adopted 2010-2011 budget ordinance.

Undesignated - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation which is uncommitted at year-end.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Excess of Expenditures over Aopropriations

For the fiscal year ended June 30,2010, the expenditures in the City's Landfill Fund operations exceeded the
authorized appropriations made by the governing board by $17,829. This over-expenditure occurred because of
unplanned additional expense in landfill operations. Management and the Board will more closely review the
budget reports to ensure compliance in future years.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Assets

1. Deposits

All of the City's, the ADDC's and the ABC Board's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two
methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the federal depository insurance coverage level are
collateralized with securities held by the City's, the ADDC's, or the ABC Board's agents in these units' names.
Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by
the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary
capacity for the City, the ADDC, and the ABC Board, these deposits are considered to be held by the City's, the
ADDC, and the ABC Board's agents in their names. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved
averaging method for noninterest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits.
Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering
uninsured deposits.

The State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the City, the ACDD, or the ABC Board, or with the
escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amounts of collateral pledged for the City, the ADDC,
or the ABC Board under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for undercollaterization, and this risk may increase
in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial
stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. The City has no formal
policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum
capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions and to monitor them for compliance. The City complies
with the provisions of G.S.159-31 when designating official depositories and verifying that deposits are properly
secured. The ADDC and the ABC Board have no formal policies regarding custodial credit risk for deposits.

At June 30, 2010, the City 's deposits had a carrying amount of $13,302,747 and a bank batance of $13,401,685.
Of the bank balance, $1,614,902 was covered by federal depository insurance and $11,786,783 was covered by
collateral held under the pooling method. At June 30, 2010, the City's petty cash fund totaled $3,008. The carrying
amount of the deposits for the ADDC was $73,608 and a bank balance of $73,608. Of the bank balance $73,606
was covered by federal depository insurance. The carrying amount of deposits for the ABC Board was $24,472
and a bank balance of $47,308. Of the bank balance, the entire balance was covered by federal depository
insurance. At June 30, 2010, the ABC Board's petty cash fund totaled $5,438.

2. lnvestments

At June 30, 2010, the City of Albemarle had $1,518,360 invested with the North Carolina Capital Management
Trust's Cash Portfolio which carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor's. The City has no policy
regarding credit risk.

3. Receivables - Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

The amounts presented in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Assets are net of the following allowances
for doubtful accounts:

General Fund:
Taxes receivable $@a
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

A. Assefs (Continued)

4. CapitalAssets

Capital asset activity for the Primary Government for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
Other imorovements
Infrastructure
Equipment and furnishings
Mobile Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings
Other improvements
Infrastructure
Equipment and furnishings
Mobile equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated - net

Total Governmental Activities
Caoital assets - net

General government
Public safety
Public works
Recreation

Total depreciation expense

Beginning
Balances Increases

$ 2,347,000 $ 105,979
7,876.539 3.812,462

10,223.539 3.918.441

5,703,311 3 ,701,887
565,555 89,927

4,082,407 628,254
1,61  1 ,595 329,669
4.200.567 106.008

16,163,435 4.855.745

2.240,741 205,723
242,558 39,369

1,501 ,723 123,917
958,010 123,031

2.931.329 264.366
7.874.361 $ 756_406

8,289,074

$_78512.074

Decreases

9.871.701
9.871.701

20 000

68,604
255.358
343.962

15 633

37j94
1 9 1 , 0 8 2

L- 243J09

t r n r { i n n

Balances

$ 2,452,979
1 ,817.300
4.270.279

o  ? A q  1 0 a

655,482
4,710,661
1,872,660
4,051 .217

20.675.218

2,430,831
281 ,927

1,625,640
1,043,847
3,004.613

12.288.360

$ r6J58S39

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

$  171 ,090
251,374
213,349
120,593

L_156306
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

A. Assefs (Continued)

4. Capital Assets (Continued)

Beginning
Balances lncreases Decreases

c 1 ' lo o""

626.300
766.233

32,348,842
zo , t  t o , oz l

,  A O ?  O A 7
-......ry

62.019.456

17,414,402
18,229,920
2.207.903

37.852.225

24.167.231

24,933,464

Beginning
Balances

$ 31 ,963
87j43

1  1 9 . 1 0 6

1,348,814
17,766,519
1.912.268

21 .027.601

1,066,282
15,880,726
1.444,222

18,391 ,230

2.755.477

J -

48.396
48.396

2,487,870
2,224,435

301.834
5 . 0 1 4 . 1  3 9

601 ,741
679,427
136.282

s 1alta5a

v -

674.696
674,696

y . z , a
31 .216

z , .za
$ 31216

Ending
Balances

q, 1 ?O O??

..................."'.............:..:

34,836,712
29,001,062

3.164.605
67,002,379

1  8 , 0 1 6 , 1 4 3
18,909,347
2.312,969

39.238,459

27.763.920

27,903.853

Ending
Balances

$  3 1 , 9 6 3

5,140,629
17,998,779
2.281 .032

25.420.440

1,174,038
16,154,2U
1,475.OU

18.803,376

6,617,0&

6,649,027

Business-type activities
Water and Sewer Fund

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Caprtal assets being depreciated
Buildings
Water and sewer lines
Equipment and vehicles

Total capital assets berng depreciated

Less accumulated deoreciation
Buildings
Water and sewer lines
Equipment and vehicles

Total accumulated deoreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated - net

Water and Sewer Fund
Capital Assets - net

Business-type activities
Electric Fund

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
Distribution lines
Equipment and vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated deoreciation
Buildings
Distribution lines
Equipment and vehicles

Total accumulated deoreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated - net

Electric Fund Capital
Assets - net

u -

Increases

3,791 ,815
zJz,zou
399.824

4.423.899

107,756
z r  J , 3 2 6
1 NA AAq

.....................j.g

$__ 48tu149

Decreases

$ -
87j43
87.143

31.06;
31 .060

76.00;
$_ f6*003
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

A. Assets (Continued)

4. Capital Assets (Continued)

Business-type activities
Landfill Fund

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress 3.424,332 37.302 - 3,46j,634

Total capital assets not being depreciated 3.584023 3?.302 
-- 

- 3.621 ,325

Capital assets being depreciated

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances

$ 159,691 $  -  $  -  $  159,691

Buildings
Landfi ll cell construction

193,951 17 ,223 -  211.174
3J48,443 3,148,443

Equipment and vehicles 2,612.378 32.567 202.42s 2.442,520
Total capital assets being depreciated 5.954.772 49,790 zo2A2s 5 go2.B7

Less accumulated deoreciation
Buildings
Landfi ll cell construction
Equipment and vehicles

Total accumulated deoreciation

53,648 7,298 - 60.946
3,083,205 2 ,114 -  3 ,085,319
1.433.710 189,010 16 ,805 1 ,605.915
4,570,563 $ 198A22 $ 16,805 4.752.180

Total capital assets being depreciated - net 1,384,209 1,049.957

4.671.282Landfill Fund Capital Assets - net 4,968.232

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances

Business{ype activities
Department of Public Housing

Capital assets not being depreciated
L a n d $ 1 6 3 , 5 0 5 $ $ $ i 6 3 , 5 0 5
Construction in progress 5.075 268.37 j

Total capital assets not being depreciated 168,580 268.371

Capital assets being depreciated
Buibings 8,786,250 843,709 - 9.629.959
lmprovements 593,407 593,407
Equipment 270.742 37.643 5.731 302.654

Total capital assets being depreciated 9.650.399 881 .352 5.731 j 0,526.020

Less accumulated deoreciation
Buildings 4,076,839 209,265 - 4,286,104
lmprovements 261 ,493 17,157 - 279.650
Equipment 165.773 16,945 (397) 1 83.1 I 5

Total accumulated depreciation 4,504,105 $-243-367 s $gA 4.747,869

Total capital assets being depreciated - net 5j46294 S.77g:|S1

Department of Public Housing
Capital Assets - net 5.314.874 6.2j5.102

Busi ness-type Activities Capital
Assets, net $j1572.047 $ 4fun9264
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CIW OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
ruOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

A. Assefs (Continued)

Discretely presented component units:

Activity for the ADDC Board for the year ended June 30, 20'10, was a follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land

Capital assets being depreciated
Bui ldings
Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accu m u lated deoreciation
Bui ldings
Equipment and vehicles

Total accu mu lated deoreciation

Deoreciable assets. net

Total ADDC Board capital
assets, net

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land

Capital assets being depreciated
Bui ldings
Equipment and furniture

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation
Bui ldings
Equipment and furniture

Total accumulated depreciation

Depreciable assets, net

TotalABC Board capital
assets, net

Activity for the ABC Board for the year ended June 30, 20'10, was a fottows:

Beginning
Balances

q  Q A  A ? A
v  v v l v v v

908,778
17.601

926,379

216,531

233,1  56

693.223

$ f7ez58

Beginning
Balances

$ 261,417

1,035,540
181 ,439

1,216.979

107,748
103,084
210,832

1.006,147

$ 1-262J64

Increases

$ 20.973

1 0 8
1 0 8

22,719
1 , 6 0 3

L 24,3n

Increases

$

1,657
1,657

27,006
1 8 , 0 3 1

$ _45J32

Decreases

$

$ -

Decreases

$

c
9 -

Ending
Balances

$ 106,508

908,778
17.709

926,487

239,250
18,228

257,478

669.009

L fl5511

Ending
Balances

$ 261.417

1,035,540
183,096

1 ,218,636

134,754
121.115
255.869

962,767

$ 1J24J84
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CIW OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
'VOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Liabilities

1. Pavables

Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2010, were as follows

Govern mental activities:
General
City Hall Capital Project
Other governmental

Total - governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer fund
Electric fund
Landf i l l fund
Department of public housing

Total - Business-type activities

Vendors

$ 299,045
475

43.943

$_ 343303

$ 342,658
2,512,443

106,754
9.531

Salaries and
Benefits

$ 358,485

L_358385

$  1 2 2 , 2 1 1
93,531
30,919
40,916

Other

q
v -

v

u -
39,207

Total

$ 657,530
475

43,943

$ 701_%8

$ 464,869
2,645,181

137,673
50.447

$ 2p71_386 L_ 2w-gf $ 39202 $ 3298J20

2. Pension Plan Obliqations

a. Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System

Plan Description. The City of Albemarle and the ABC Board contribute to the statewide Local Governmental
Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a_ cosl-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension ptan
administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and imend benefit provisions ro
the North Carolina GeneralAssembly. The Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The-State,s CAFR incluoes
financial statements and _required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained Oy wriiing to
the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina2llgg{qlO, oiOy caff,ng
(919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The City and
the ABC Board are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the City, the current raie for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers is 4.93% and 4.g6%, respectively, of
annual covered payroll. The ABC Board is currently required to contribute 5.15o/o of annual covered payroll. The
contribution requirements of members and of the City of Albemarle are established and may be amended by the
North Carolina General Assembly.

The City's contributions to LGERS for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 20Og were $534,471, $531,g46,
and $510,105, respectively. The ABC Board's contributions to LGERS for the years ended June'gO, 201O ,OOg
and 2008 were $9,243, $8,541 , and $7,8'19, respectively. The contributions made by the City and the ABC Board
equaled the required contributions for each year.

The ADDC does not participate in LGERS.

Page 36



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
/VOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Liabilities (Continued)

2. Pension Plan Obliqations (Continued)

b. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance

(1) Plan Description

The City of Albemarle, NC administers a public employee retirement system (the "separation Allowance"), a single-
employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the City's qualified sworn law
enforcement officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of
compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits
are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the General
Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
North Carolina GeneralAssembly. The plan does not issue a separate financial report.

All fulltime law enforcement officers of the City are covered by the Separation Allowance. At December 31, 2009,
the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits
Terminated plan members entitled to but not

yet receiving benefits
Active olan members 49

Total E

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting. The City has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis. pensron
expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Method Used to Value lnvestments. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs. These
expenditures are paid as they come due.

(3) Contributions

The City is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen to funo
the benefit payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget.
The City's obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General
Assembly. There were no contributions made by employees.

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2O0g actuarial
valuatton using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 5.00%
investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) prolected salary increases of 4$% to 12.3o/o per
year. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.75%. The assumptions did not include post-retiremenr
benefit increases.
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CIW OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
A/OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 50, 2010

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Liabilities (Continued)

2. Pension Plan Obliqations (Continued)

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obtigation. 
-The 

City's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to theSeparation Allowance for the current year were as follows:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net pension obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution
Annual pension cost
Contributions made
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation
Net pension obligation beginning of fiscal year
Net pension obligation end of fiscal year

Three year Trend Information

$ 103,000
28,007

Q4.335)
$ 106,672

82,679
23,993

386,305
$_ 4!298

Fiscal
Year

Endinq

6/30/2008
6t30t2009
6t30t2010

Annual
Pension

Cost (APC)

$ 81 ,732
$ 98,791
$ 106,672

Percentage of
APC

Contributed

82.25%
83.69%
77.51%

Net Pension
Obligation End

of Year

$370,1 93
$386,305
$410,298

Funded Sfatus and Funding Progress

As of December 31 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits and the unfunded actuarial accrued liabitity (UAAL) was g1,363,g32. The covereopayroll (annual payroll of acttve employees covered by the plan) was SZ,lOz,t6Z, anO the ratio of the UAAL tothe covered payroll was 64.72 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to thefinancial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whethei the actuarial value 6t ptan assets areincreasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

c. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Regular and Law Enforcement Officers

Plan Description. The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income plan (plan), a defined contribution
pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of irustees. The plan provides
retirement benefits to employees of the City. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina GeneralAssembly. The SupplemLntal Retirement Income plan for
law enforcement officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North
Carolina. The States CAFR includes the pension trust fund financral statements for the Internal Revenue Code
Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for law enforcement officers. That
report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North
Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919)981-5454.

Page 38



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
/VOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Liabilities (Continued)

2. Pension Plan Obliqations (Continued)

Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an amount equal to five
percent of law enforcement officers' salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, law
enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2010
were $153,550, which consisted of $99,628 from the City and $53,922 from the law enforcement officers.

d. Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund

Plan Descriptlon. The State of North Carolina contributes, on behalf of the City of Albemarle, NC to the Firemen's
and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund (Fund), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
with a special funding situation administered by the State of North Carolina. The Fund provides pension benefits
for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have elected to become members of the fund. Article 86 of G.S.
Chapter 58 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General
Assembly. The Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers' Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annuar
Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State
Controller, '1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund. The State, a nonemployer
contributor, funds the plan through appropriations. The City does not contribute to the Fund. Contribution
requirements of plan members and the State of North Carolina are established and may be amended by the North
Carolina General Assembly.

Also, the City has recognized as a revenue and an expenditure on-behalf payments for fringe benefits and salarres
of $17,365 for the salary supplement and stipend benefits paid to eligible firemen by the local board of trustees of
the Firemen's Relief Fund during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Under State law the local board of trustees
for the Fund receives an amount each year which the Board may use at its own discretion for eligible firemen or
their deoartments.

e. Other Postemployment Benefit

Healthcare Benefits

Plan Description. Under the terms of a City resolution, the City administers a single-employer defined benefit
Healthcare Benefits Plan (the HCB Plan). As of July 1, 1984, this plan provides postemployment healthcare
benefits to retirees of the City, provided they participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees'
Retirement System (System) and have at least ten years (other service requirements also exist) of creditable
service with the City. Prior to July 1, 1984, employees did not receive this benefit. The City pays a percentage of
healthcare coverage, starting with ten years of creditable service and at twenty-five years of creditable service, the
full cost of coverage. These benefits are paid through private insurers. Also, the City's retirees can purchase
coverage for their dependents at the City's group rates. The City Council may amend the benefit provisions. A
separate report was not issued for the plan.

Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2009, the date of the latest actuarial
valuat ion:

Law
General Enforcement
Employees: Officers:

Retirees and dependents receiving benefits 25 I
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 0 0
Active plan members 223 49

Total 258 57
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Liabilities(Continued)

2. Pension Plan Obliqations (Continued)

e. Other Postemplovment Benefit (Continued)

Funding Policy. The City pays a percentage of healthcare coverage, starting with ten years of creditable servrce
and at twenty-five years of creditable service, the full cost of coverage under a Clty resolution that can oe
amended by City Council. The City's members pay the actual cost per month for dependent coverage. The City
has chosen to fund the healthcare benefits on a pay as you go basis.

The current ARC rate is 6.94% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the City contributed $200,240 or
1.79o/o of annual covered payroll. The City obtains healthcare coverage through private insurers. The City's
required contributions, under a City resolution, for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law
enforcement officers represented 6.940/o and 6.94% of covered payroll, respectively. There were no
contributions made by employees. The City's obligation to contribute to HCB Plan is established and mav oe
amended by the City Counci l

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Postemployment expenditures are made from the General Funo,
which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits ano
administration costs. These expenditures are paid as they come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated baseo on
the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basrs
is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess;
over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the City's annual OpEB
cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation for
the healthcare benefits:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution
Annual OPEB cost (expense)
Contributions made
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year
Net OPEB obligation, end of year

$ 770,578
22,904

( 1 9 , 7 6 1 )
773,721
200,240
573,481
572.610

LL140J91

The City 's annual OPEB cost,  the percentage of annual OPEB cost contr ibuted to the plan, and the net OpEB
obligation for 2010 were as follows:

For Year Percentage of Annual
Ended Annual OPEB Cost Net OpEB

June 30 OPEB Cost Contr ibuted Obl ioat ion

2009 $ 770,578
2010 773,721

$  5 7 2 , 6 1 0
573,481

7.45%
6.94%
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Liabilities (Continued)

2. Pension Plan Obliqations (Continued)

e. Other Postemplovment Benefit (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (UAAL) was $8,983,695. The covered payroll (annual payroll of actrve employees covered by the plan)
w a s $ 1 ' l , l 3 6 , 5 S 4 , a n d t h e r a t i o o f t h e U A A L t o t h e c o v e r e d p a y r o l l w a s 8 0 . 3 p e r c e n t .  A c t u a r i a l v a l u a t i o n s o f a n
ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality,
and healthcare trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear treno
information about whether the actuadal value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members at that point.  The actuarial  methods and assumptions used include techniques
that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value assets, consistent with the longterm perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31,2009 actuarial  valuat ion, the projected unit  credit  actuarial  cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 4.00 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which
is the expected long-term investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the
funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual medical cost trend increase of 10.50 to 5.00
percent annually. The investment rate included a 3.75 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of
assets, if any, was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short{erm volatility in the market
value of investments over a 5 year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected
payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2009, was 30 years.

f. Other Employment Benefits

The City has also elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members of
the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, state-
administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who
die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after
retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership service in the System at
the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to
the employee's '12 highest months salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the employee's death, but the
benefit may not exceed $50,000 or be less than $25,000. All death benefit payments are made from the Death
Benefit Plan. The City has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The contributions to the Death
Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amounr.
The City considers these contributions to be immaterial.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Liabilities(Continued)

3. Deferred/Unearned Revenues

The balance in deferred or unearned revenues at year-end is composed of the following.

Prepaid privilege licenses (General)
Note receivable (General)
Taxes receivable, net (General)
Assessments receivable (General)
Prepaid rents (Business-type Funds)

Deferred
Revenue

q
w -

546,27€
4,091

Unearned
Revenue

$ 238,554
800,000

5,905

$ _550367 L_t044j59

4. Risk Manaqement

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City participates in two self-funded risk-
financing pools administered by the North Carolina League of Municipalities. Through these pools, the City
obtains general liability and auto liability coverage of $2 million per occurrence, workers' compensation
coverage up to statutory limits and employee health coverage up to the statutory limits, and employee health
coverage up to a $1 million lifetime limit.

The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant reductions rn
insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three
f iscalyears.

The ADDC is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The ADDC has insurance coverage for propeny,
general liability, workers' compensation, and employee health coverage.

The ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets,
errors and omissions; injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The ABC Board has insurance coverage for
property, general liability, workers'compensation, and employee health coverage. The ABC Board also hasliquor
legal liability coverage.

The City does not carry flood insurance as none of their buildings are located in flood prone areas.

In accordance with G.S. '159-29, the City's employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time of the
City's funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The finance officer and tax collector are
each individually bonded for $150,000 and $'100,000, respectively. The remaining employees that have access to
funds are bonded under a blanket bond for $50,000.

5. Claims, Judqments and Continqent Liabilities

At June 30, 2010, the City was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the City's management and the
City attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the City's financial
oosition.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
B. Liabilities (Continued)

6. Lonq-Term Obliqations

a. lnstallment Purchases

In December 2006, the City entered into an installment purchase
contract to finance fire equipment. The obligation is to be repaid
in twenty quarterly payments of $20,704, including interest at 3.59
percent, secured by the equipment.

In December 2006, the City entered into an installment purchase
contract to f inance publ ic ut i l i t ies equipment.  The obl igat ion is to
be repaid in twenty quarterly payments of $9,159, including interest
at 3.59%, secured by the equipment.

ln October of 2007, the City entered into an installment contract
to f inance a Trashmaster (equipment) at  the landf i l l .  The obl igat ion
is to be repaid in twenty quarterly payments of $35,665, including
interest at 3.49%, secured by the equipment.

ln December 2007, the City entered into an installment contract
to f inance a Vacuum Truck in Publ ic Works. The obl igat ion is
to be repaid in twenty quarter ly payments of $11,763, including
interest at 3.08%, secured by the equipment.

ln November 2007, the City entered into an installment contract to
finance the purchase of land. The obligation is to be paid by a $250,000
payment at c losing and the remainder in three equal annual payments,
including interest at4.00%, secured by the land.

In January 2008, the City entered into an installment contract to
finance the expansion of the Landfill. The obligation is to be repaid
in twenty quarterly payments of principal at $65,000, and interest at2.98%,
secured by other Landfill equipment.

In April 2008, the City entered into an installment contract to
f inance the expansion of the New City Hal l  Bui lding. The obl igat ion
is to be repaid in sixty quarterly payments of principal at $87,500,
and interest at3.43o/o, secured by land and building.

In May 2009, the City entered into an installment contract to finance
the purchase of a street superior public works. The obligation is to be
repaid in sixty monthly payments of $3,485, including interest at2.83o/o,
secured by the equipment.

In March 2010, the City entered into an installment contract to finance
the purchase of a telephone system & core switch. The obligation is to be
repaid in sixty monthly payments of $4,206, including interest at2.815%,
secured by the equipment

Serviced bv
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities

$ 120,414 $

53,270

307,381

112,794

1 1 6 , 7 0 0

715 ,000

1,820,000 2,730,000

145,609

77,162 143,301

$ 2J92*679 $ 3p4Sp52Total Installment Purchases
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Liabilities (Continued)

6. Lonq-Term Obliqations

a. Installment Purchases

The future minimum payments of the instal lment purchase contracts as of June 30, 2010, are as fol lows:

Governmental Activities Business{vpe Activities
Year Endinq June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2011 $  434,259 $  76 ,215 $667,983 $123,431
2012 281,777 62,790 656,432 101,522
2013 220307 53,757 471,187 81,721
2014 184,683 47,102 241,710 70,426
2015 151 ,653 41 ,520 231 ,640 62,316
2016-20 700,000 135,056 1,050,000 202,585
2021-25 420,000 23.410 630,000 35,114

rotals $2-3p2$79 $ 439-850 $3-94S-952 $ €ZZA[3

At June 30, 2010 the City 's legaldebt margin is $ 78,646,235.

c. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of changes in the City's long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2010:

Current
Balance Balance portion of

July 1,2009 Increases Decreases June 30,2010 Balance
Governmental activities:

lnstallment purchases $ 2,728841 $ 81 ,017 $ 417 ,179 $ 2,392,679 $ 434,259
compensated absences 547 ,381 336,619 z94,i0o 589,900 294,950
Net pension obligation 386,305 23,993 - 410,298
Other postemployment benefits 344.711 339.505

Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $-rt007238 L l8l131 $_lll279 $_4J7ru93 $ 729209

Business-type activities:

lnstallment purchases 4,438,675 150,460 640,183 3,948,952 667,983
Compensated absences 290,659 199,460 160,411 329,708 164,g54
Other postemployment benefits 227.899 233,976 - 461.875

Business-type activity
Long{erm liabilities $ 4*957233 $---583j96 $- 840J94 S-4Z10J3S $ __S32j3Z

Compensated absences for governmental activities have typically been liquidated in the general fund.
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NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
B. Liabilities(Continued)

7. Lonq-Term Obliqations - Albemarle Downtown Development Corporation

The ADDC has entered into a note payable for the purchase of real property, secured by a deed of trust. Principal,
along with interest at the rate of 5.25%, is due in annual installments of $10,904. Annual debt service requirements
for this note payable are as follows.

Year Endinq June 30

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Thereafter

Year Endino June 30

2011

8. Lonq-Term Obliqations - City of Albemarle ABC Board

The Board entered into a note payable during the year ending June 30, 2006, secured by a deed of trust on a new
building constructed during the year ending June 30, 2006. The amount of the note payable is $t,0OO,OOO.
Principal, along with interest, is due in 59 monthly installments of $8,574, with the remaining balance due
December,2010. The interest rate is the prime rate, less 1% with the minimum being 4.25 and the maximum
being 6.25%. Annual debt service requirements for this note payable are as follows:

Principal Interest

$ 7,252 $ 4,022
7,633 3,654
8,034 3,257
8,456 2,840
8,899 2,416

29,291 5,209

$_ 69J65 $ 21_398

Principal Interest

$ 106,369 $ 7.410

$ r106J69 S- ljl!

C. htertund Balances and Activity

1. Transfers to/from other funds

Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2009, consist of the following:

From the General Fund to the City Hall Capital Prolect Fund for operatrng expenditures

From the General Fund to the Electric Fund for operating expenditures.

From the Comprehensive Bicycle Grant Fund to the General Fund
for operating expenditu res

From the Recreation Grant Fund to the General Fund for operating expenditures.

From the General Fund to the E.E. Waddell Renovations Project for capital expenditures

From the Clean Water Management Trust Grant Fund to the General Fund for operating
expenditures.

From the Water and Sewer Fund to the General Fund for operating expenditures

From the Water and Sewer Fund to the City Hall Project Fund for operating expenditures

$955,000

25,000

7,000

1 ,500

429,979

3,500

250,000

125,000
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
'VOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 3 - DETAIL NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

C. htertund Balances and Activity (Continued)

1. Transfers to/from other funds (Continued)

From the Electric Fund to the General Fund for operating expenditures.

From the Electric Fund to the City Hall Project Fund for operating expenditures

From the Landfill Fund to the General Fund for operating expenditures.

From the Electric Fund to the General Fund for payment in lieu of taxes.

From the Governmental Funds to the Water and Sewer Fund for asset transfers

From the Governmental Funds to the Electric Fund for asset transfers

2. Interfund Receivables and Pavables

Receivable
Fund Pavable Fund

General Fund
To fund operations

General Fund
To fund operations

General Fund
To fund operations

Publ ic Housing

Water and Sewer Fund

Electric Fund

275,000

580,000

225,000

640,000

1,922,481

3,918,217

Amount

$  1 ,598

421,004

842,133

$r_264J35

D. On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the Ci$ of Albemade has recognized on-behalf payments for pension
contributions made by the state as a revenue and an expenditure of $ 17,365 for the 19 volunteer firemen and the
42 employed fireman who perform firefighting duties for the town's fire department. The volunteers and employees
elected to be members of the Firemen and Rescue Worker's Pension Fund, a cost sharing, multiple empioyer
public employee retirement system established and administered by the State of North Carolina. The plan rs
funded by a $10 monthly contribution paid by each member, investment income, and a State appropriation.

NOTE 4 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

North Carolina Municipal Power Aoencv Number 1

The City, in conjunction with twenty other local governments, is a member of the North Carolina City Municipal
Power Agency Number 1 (Agency). The Agency was formed to enable municipalities that own electric
distribution systems to finance, construct, own, operate, and maintain generation and transmission facilities.
Each participating government appoints one commissioner to the Agency's governing board. The twenty-one
members, which receive power from the Agency, have signed power sales agreements to purchase a specified
share of the power generated by the Agency. Except for the power sales purchase requirements, no local
government participant has any obligation, entitlement, or residual interest. The City's purchases of power for
the f iscal  year ended June 30, 2010 were $23,374,734.
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
'VOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

NOTE 4 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS (Continued)

Centralina Council of Governments
The City, in conjunction with nine counties and sixty-four other municipalities, participates in the Centralina Council
of Governments (Council). The participating governments established the Council to coordinate various funding
received from the federal and state agencies. Each participating government appoints one member to the
Council's governing board. The City paid membership fees of $ 4,007 to the Council during the year ended
June 30 ,  2010.

NOTE 5 - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES

Federal and State Assisted Proqrams
The City has received proceeds from several federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are required
and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements. Such
audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required
refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of
grant moneys.

NOTE 6 - CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS - CITY OF ALBEMARLE LANDFILL FACILITY

The City operates two landfills which are referred to as the "old landfill" and the "new landfill." State and federal
laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its landfills when they stop accepting waste and to
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the sites for thirty years after closure. Although certain
closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date each landfill stops accepting waste, the
City reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period based
on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $3,447,837 reported as landfill closure ano
postclosure care liability at June 30, 2010 represents a cumulative amount reported to date, based on the use of
loOo/o of the total estimated capacity of the old landfill and 100% use of the new landfill. Actual costs may be
higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

The following is an analysis of landfill closure and postclosure liability at June 30, 2010:

Old Landfil l
New Landfil l

$ 2,068,938
1,378,899

waqls
The City has met the requirements of a local government financial test that is one option under state and federal
laws and regulations that help determine if a unit is financially able to meet closure and postclosure care
reouirements.
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Required Supplemental Financial Data

This section contains addit ional information required by general ly accepted
accounting principles.

. Schedule of Funding Progress for the Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation
Allowance.

o Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Law Enforcement Off icers' Special
Separation Allowance.

o Schedule of Funding Progress for the Other Postemployment Benefits

o Schedule of Employer Contributions for the Other Postemployment Benefits.



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
REQU I RED S U PPLEMENTAL I N FORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

12t31t2004

12t31t2005

12t31t2006

12t31t2007

12t31t2008

12t31t2009

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

Actuarial Accrued
Liabil ity (ML)
Projected Unit

Credit
(b)

Unfunded
ML Funded

(UAAL) Ratio
(b-a) (a/b)

Covered
Payroll

(c)

1,710,293

1 , 7 2 1 , 0 1 7

1,817,640

1 , 9 1 1 , 8 3 3

1,900,489

2,107,167

UAAL as a
% of Covered

Payroll
(b-a)/c)

44.10%

38.77o/o

41.93o/o

48.03o/o

54.52o/o

64.72o/o

754,205

667,716

762,195

918,171

1,036,076

1,363,832

754,205

667,716

762,195

918,171

1,036,076

1,363,832

0o/o

0o/o

0%

0o/o

0%o

0Yo
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Year Ended
June 30

2008

2009

2010

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return

Projected salary increases*

' lncludes inf lat ion at

Cost of living adjustments

Annual Required
Contr ibut ions

$  8 1 , 7 3 2

$ 98 ,791

$ 106,672

Percentage

Contributed

82.25%

83.69%

77.51%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part
of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest
actuarial valuation follows:

December 31, 2009

Projected unit credit

Level percent of pay closed

21 Years

Market value

5.00%

4.5% - 12.3o/o

3.75o/o

N/A
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
OTH ER POSTEM P LOYM ENT B EN EF ITS
REQU I RED S U P P LEM ENTARY I N FORM ATIO N
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)
Projected
Unit  Credit

(b)

Unfunded
AAL

(UAAL)
( b - a )

Funded
Ratio
(a/b)

Covered
Payroll

(c)

UAAL as of
o/o ot

Covered
Payroll

((b -  a)/c)

12t31t2007

12t31t2008

12t31t2009

0

0

0

9 , 1 7 5 , 0 3 9

9 , 0 1 8 , 1 3 9

8,983,695

9 , 1 7 5 , 0 3 9

9 , 0 0 8 , 1 3 9

8,983,695

9 , 8 1 9 , 9 9 5

1 0, 354, 1 40

1 1  ,186,584

93.4%

87j%

80.3%

0%

0Yo

0%
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
OT H ER POSTEM P LOYM ENT BEN EF ITS
REQ U I RE D S U P P LEM ENTARY I N FO RM ATIO N
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
June 30, Contribution Contributed

2009
2010

770,578
773,721

7.45o/o
6.94%

IVofes to the Required Schedules;

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the
actuarial valuation follows.

Valuation date 12t31t2009

Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit

Amortization method Level percent open

Remaining amortization period 30 years

Asset valuation method Market vlaue

Actuarial assumptions:

lnvestment rate of return* 4.0o/o

Medical cost t rend 10.50% - 5.00%

*lncludes inflation at 3.75o/o

Cost of living adjustments None
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Combining and Indiv idual  Fund
Financial Statements



Major Governmental Funds

General Fund - This fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with
government that are not required legally or by sound financial management to be
accounted for in other funds

City Hall Capital Proiect Fund - This fund accounts for City transfers and other
revenues to construct the New city Hall Building and facil i t ies.



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 'N FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit A-1
Page 1 of 5

Revenues
Ad valorem taxes

Current year
Prior years
Penalties and interest

Total

Other taxes and licenses
Gross receipts tax on short-term rental
Local occupancy tax
Privilege licenses

Total

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues
Local option sales tax
Franchise tax
Telecommunications tax
Video programming fees
Piped natural gas tax
Beer and wine tax
Payment in lieu of taxes

Total

Restricted intergovernmental revenue
ABC - law enforcement
Powell Bill allocation
State grants
Drug tax distribution
ABC Senate Bill Distribution
Schools
On-behalf payments - fire

Total

Permits and fees
Fire Department fees
Housing fees
Inspection and rezoning fees
Nuisance abatements

Total

2010

Budqet Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

$ 5,386,288 $
1 3 1 , 9 3 6
36,538

5.688.500 5,554,762 (133,738)

propeny

263,400

17,078
84,534

1 7 1 , 5 5 8
273,170 9,770

2,528,528
673,875
205,944
148,076
68,1  80
23,101

147
3,680,1  50

655,950

3,647,851

4,575
500,479
29,988
7,691

20,000
93,650
17,365

673.748

(32,299)

17,798

22,683
7,396
7,095

777
(14,849)52,800 37,951
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE. NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AruD CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Exhibit A-1
Page 2 of 5

2010

Revenues (continued)
Sales and service

Court costs and fees
Refuse collection fees
Cultural and recreational fees

Total

Investment earnings

Miscel laneous
Miscel laneous
Sale of surplus property
Sale of fixed assets
Lease revenue
Contributions
I nsurance rei mbursement

Total

Total revenues

Exoenditures
General government

Administration
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

Information systems
Salaries and employees benefits
Other operating expenditures
Capitalout lay

Total

820,350

128,000

2,121
726,791
91,066

819,978

48,571

Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

(372\

(79,429\

51,46'

/ 1  R l  A q 7 \
\  |  v  I  r v v  r  , ,

49,446

1 1 ,338,596

471,900

28,053
13,480
45,419

550
11,137
2,269

100,908

1 1 , 1 5 6 , 9 3 9

l V V

201,173
270,328
471,501

49,829
95,767
85,754

266,682 2 3 1 , 3 5 0 35,332
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES ''V FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit A-1
Page 3 of 5

2010

Expenditures (Continued)
General government (continued)

Engineering
Salaries and employees benefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

Human resources
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

Finance
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

Community Development
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

Total general government

Public Safety
Police

Salaries and employee benefits
School resource officers
Other operating expenditures
Capital outlay

Total

Fire department
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operati ng expenditures
Fire Marshall
Capitalout lay

Total

Total public safety

379,900 336,938

s19,900

299,649
1 16 ,383
416,032

1 ,839,582 1 ,60 '1 ,348

3,077,793
182,826
286,035
111 j62

Budoet Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

19 j2275,950

37,570
19,258
56,828

61,178
27,521

125,250 88,699 36,551

1 3 0 , 6 1 9
206,319

103,868

238.234

3,775,246 3,657.816 117,430

2,092,127
457,509
77,806
23,980

2,741,498

6.516.744

2.651.422 90,076

207,5066,309.238
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 'A' FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit A-1
Page 4 ot 5

Expenditures (Continued)
Public works

Administration
Salaries and employees benefits
Solid waste disoosal fee
Downtown Services
Other operating expenditures

Total

Streets and Highways
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures
Capital outlay

Total

Shop and Warehouse
Salaries and employee benefits
Other operating expenditures

Total

Total oublic works

Envi ronmental protection
Solid waste

Solid waste
Bad debt exoense

Total environmental orotection

Cultural and recreation
Parks and recreation

Salaries and employee benefits
Other operati ng expenditures
Capital outlay

Total cultural and recreation

Debt service
Principal retirement
lnterest and fees

Total debt service

Total exoenditures

2010

Budqet Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

193,642
259,935
1 0 2 , 8 9 1
47,312

626,350 603,780

819,982
225,091

51,440

22,570

1 ,167,400 1 , 0 9 6 , 5 1 3

3 5 2 , 0 1 3
73,064

425.077

70,887

8,923

2,227 ,750 2,125,370 .102,380

1 , ' r05 ,834
4,242

1 , 1 1 4 , 0 0 0 1 ,1  1  0 ,076 3,924

789,563
274,786_

1 ,251,950 1,064,349 187,601

434,000

680,752

480,752
200,000

4 1 7 , 1 8 0
130,530

547,710

63,572
69,470

133,042

872,68713,630,778 12,758,091
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CIW OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 'A/ FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit A-1
Page 5 of 5

2010

Budoet Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

(2 ,292,182)  (1 ,601,152)  691 ,030Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers (to) from other funds

Water and Sewer Fund
Electric Fund
Landfill Fund
City Hall project
E.E. Waddell Renovations project
Clean Water Management Trust Grant Fund
Comprehensive Bicycle Grant Fund
Recreation Grant Fund
Electric Fund

Capital lease obligations issued

Total other financing sources (uses)

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Fund balance appropriated

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

250,000
915,000
225,000
(e55,000)
(499,979)
(e0,s00)

(1  1 ,000)
(25,000)
81,832

250,000
915,000
225,000

(e55,000)
(429,979)

3 ,500
7,000
1 , 5 0 0

(25,000)
81,017

70,00 ;
94,000
7,000

1 2 , 5 0 0

( 8 1 5 )

182,685(10e,647) 73,038

(2,401,829) (1,528,114\ 873,715

2,401,829

$-------,-------i

(2 ,401,829)

(1,528,114) $___11.]528-LL4)

5 ,391 ,031

$____3i62-qLZ
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

CITY HALL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDIIURES AND CHANGES 'N FUA'D BALANCE.

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
From lnception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit A-2

Project
Authorization

Current
Year

Total
to Date

$  71 ,636
300,000
371 ,636

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

$ 46,636
(4s0,000)
(403,364)

Actual
Prior
Years

REVENUES:
Investment earnings
Sale of fixed assets

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay:

Legal
Engineer ing
Permit fees and testing
Other equipment
Construction in progress

Environmental remediation

Total expenditures

REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Operating transfers from:

General fund
City Hall Capital Reserve Fund
Water and Sewer Fund
Electric Fund
Landfil l  Fund

Proceeds from debt
Total other financino sources:

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance,  beginning

Fund balance,  ending

$ 25,000
750,000
775,000

64,614
300,000
364,614

$ 7,022

7,022

65,000
687,000
'r05,000

500,000
9,292,000

250,000
10,899,000

(10,124,000)

,,I 7 AAF

683,837
91 ,255
82,555

6,266,127
151,137

7,292,476

(6,927,862\

100
55,280
19 ,987

572,065
1,844,648

2,492,080

(2,485,058)

17,665
739,117
111,242
654,620

8,110,775
151,137

9,784,556

(9,412,920)

47,335
47,883

3,758
45,380

871,225
98,863

1 ,114 ,444

71  1 ,080

1,750,000
920,000
250,000

1,000,000
250,000

5,954,000
10,124,000

$

875,000
922,712
125,000
500,000
125,000

5,250,000

955,000

125,000
580,000

1,830,000
922,712
250,000

1,080,000
125,000

5,250,000
9,457,712

80,000
2 , 7 1 2

80,000
(125,000)
(704,000)
(666,288)7 ,797 ,712  1 ,660 ,000

$ _-q49,8@ (825,058)

869,850

9---11:/e2

$ 44,792 $ 44,792
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Non-major Governmental Funds

Comprehensive Bicycle Grant Fund - This fund is used to accumulate monies
to assist in the comprehensive planning of bicycle transportation.

E.E. Waddell Renovation Fund - This fund is used to account for grant monies
restricted for the renovation of the E.E. Waddell Center.

Recreation Grant Fund - This fund is used to account for grant monies
restricted for parks and recreation program expenses.

Grant Fund - This fund is used to account for grant monies restricted for public
safety program expenses.

Clean Water Management Trust Grant Fund - This fund accounts for grant
monies for f lood mitigation at long creek.

Brownfield Assessment Coalition Fund - This fund accounts for grant monies
for the study of brownfields.

Morrow Chase CDBG Fund - This fund is used to account for grant monies
restricted for water/sewer and street improvements.

Justice Asstbfance Grant Fund - This fund is used to account for grant monies
restricted for use in public safety improvements.

CDBG Alfred Sfreef Project Fund - This fund accounts for grant monies to
facilitate the Alfred Street Redevelopment Project.

Synder Greenway Capital Project Fund - This fund accounts for grant monies
to facilitate the Synder Greenway Redevelopment Project.
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
COMPREHENSIVE BICYCLE GRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE.
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Exhibit B-3

and for the Fiscal Year Ended June

Actual
Current

Year
Total

To Date

Variance
Positive

(Negative)
Project

Authorization
Prior
Years

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues

NC Department of Transportation

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfers from other funds

General fund
Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance
Beginning of year, July '1

End of year, June 30

q  ? 1  e q n

45,500

45,500

/ 1 ?  A q n \
-------l-=rY:Y/

20,353

20 353

$ 31 ,697 $ 31 ,697 $ (153)

24,993 45,346

24,993 45,346

(20.353) 6.704 (13.649)

Z U . O C U (7,000)  13,650
(7,000) 13,6s020,650

o  zv t (2e6) q_l

297

q l

154

154

1

13,650
13,650

u - q . t
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
E.E. WADDELL RENOVATIONS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AA/D CHANGES IN FIJND BALANCE.
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

From lnception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit B-4

Actual
Current

Year
Total

To Date

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

I
3,424

13 ,500
30 000
12,288

907

Project
Authorization

Prior
Years

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues

NC Parks and Recreation Grant

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Other professional expense
Buildings and structures
Landscaping
Water and Sewer lmprovements
Contingency

Total expenditures

Revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfers from other funds

General fund
Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance
Beginning of year, July 1

End of year, June 30

$ 499,978 $ 441,664 $ 441.664 $ (58.314)

121 ,905
822,264

13,500
30 000
12,288

66,327 55,569 121 ,896
818,840 818,840

66,327

70,000
70.000

499,979
499.979

429,979
429,979

(2,766)

3,673

907

874,409 940,736 59,221

(499,979) (66,327) (432,745) (499,072) 907

499,979

$ 907

P a n a  A 1



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
RECREATION GRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, A'VD CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE.
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Exhibit B-5

From and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 2010

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues

N.C. Parks and Recreation Trust Fund - Phase I
N.C. Parks and Recreation Trust Fund - Phase I
N.C. Parks and Recreation Trust Fund
DOT - Enhancement Grant - Phase I
DOT - Enhancement Grant - Phase ll

Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Economic and physical development

Leasehold improvements
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfers from other funds

General Fund

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance
Beginning of year, July '1

End of year, June 30

77 ,262 75,984 - 75,984 1,278
1,468 636 1,409,942 1,003 1,4.10,945 57,691

1,545,898 1,485,926 1,003 1,486,929

(60s,818) (673 649) 16,722 (6s6,927) (47,10e)

609 818 674,009 (1,500) o  /  z , 3uY 62,691

Project
Authorization

$ 250 000
248,918

192,000
176,000
12,462
56 700

Prior
Years

$ 250,000
238,705
29,900

200,568

25,504
67,600

Current
Year

Total
To Date

Vanance
Positive

(Negative)

( 1 0  2 1 3 )
29,900
8,692

(158,400)
13,043
10 900

Actual

$ $ 250 000
- 238 70s
- 29,900

124 200,692
17,600 17,600

1 25,505

936,080 812,277 830 002 ( 1 06,078)

q  1 E  A e ,  Q  r a  r ^ ^v  r J l J u .  o  I J , J O Z?AN

17 ,725

15,222

$  15 ,582
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
GRANTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHA,VGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Exhibit 8'-6

and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Actual
Current

Year
Total

To Date

Variance
Positive

(Negative)
Project

Authorization
Prior

Years

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues

Federal Grant - Dept. of Homeland Security

Expenditures
Public safety

Operating expenditures
Capital outlay
Tools and equipment

Total expenditures

Revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfers from other funds

General fund

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance
Beginning of year, July 1

End of year, June 30

$ 347,404 S 347.404 $ 347,404

1 1  7 o 7

316,077

2 4 4  A a 2

34,279

$ -

11  ,797
53,809

2 4 2 . t A A

378,761

34,279

g 2,922

z ,vzz

11  ,797
53,809

316,077

? q a  A a 2

34,279

2,922

(34,279) (31 3s7) (2,922) (34,279)

i -(2,922)

z,vzz

$ -_______:
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
CLEAN WATER MANAGEMENT TRUSTGRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - from inception

Exhibit B-7

From

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital outlay
Other operating expenditures

Total ependitures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
From General Fund

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance
Beginning of  year ,  Ju ly  1

End of year, June 30

and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 2010

Actual
Current

Year
Total

To Date

Variance
Positive

(Negative)
Pro1ect

Authorization
Prior

Years

$ 174 000 $ 55,270 $ 95,709 $ 150 979 $ (23 021)

174,000

40,000
224.500

264,500

(90,500)

55.270

tqe;zq

149.224

(e3 s54)

94,000

$ 4 6

95,709

31 ,599
2 .516

34,115

61 ,594

(3,500)

$ 19p94

150,979

? 1  A O O

151 .740

1 R ?  ? ? O

(32,360)

90,500

58, 1 40

(23,021)

8,401
72,760

8 1  . 1  6 1

58,  1 40

$___!q!q

on qnn
....................g

i -

46

$  58 ,140
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
BROWN FIELD ASSESSME'VT COALITION FUN D
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, E)@ENDITURES, A'VD CHA'VGES IN FUND BALANCE.
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Exhibit B-B

From

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues

Rural Center Grant
Miscallaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Economic and physical development

Professional services
Administration
Advertising
Travel
Tra in ing
Other

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfers from other funds

Morrow Chase CDBG Fund

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance
Beginning of  year ,  Ju ly  1

End of year, June 30

and forthe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

Actual
Current
Year

Total
To Date

Variance
Posit ive

(Negative)

Project
Authorization

Prior
Years

$ 35,000
2,000

37,000

$ -
2 ,000

2,000 31,926 33,926

-  1 6  1 0 0
13,781 4,827

218

- -

31 ,926  $  (3 ,074 )
2 000

l ' 2  ^ a  A \
\ u , v ,  r /

1 6 , 1 0 0  7 5
18 ,608  217

_ 500
218 1,282

- 500

34,926 3,074

1 ,000

31 ,926

18  825
500

1 ,500
500
500

38 000 1 ?  O O O zv , vz l

(1 ,000 )  (11 ,999 ) 10,999 (1 ,000)

1 nnn 12 ,000

$ 1

( 1 1 , 0 0 0 )

$ -11)

Paaa AF
I  v y v  v v



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MORROW CHASE CDBG FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPEND'TURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

Exhibit B-9

From

Revenues
CDBG grant

Total revenues

Expenditures
Salaries & benefi ts
Other services
Administrat ion
Water & Sewer lmprovements
Street lmprovements

Total expenditures

Revenues (under) expenditures

Other f inancing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds

From brownfield fund

Net change rn fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Project
Authorization

O ZU,UUU

20,000

4 , 1  9 3

3 , 1 9 4

^^  ̂ ^:
zJ . zzJ

20,000

20,000

4,193

3,1 94

^^  ̂ ^ :
z J , z z J

30 .610

Variance
Positive
Negative

$ (234.612)

(234,612)

Actual
Prior

Years
Current

Year
Total

to Date

$ 254,612

254,612

17,276
1 1 , 0 0 0
21 ,576
50,248

165 ,512

265,612

(11  000 )

1 1 , 0 0 0

$_

13 ,083
1 1 , 0 0 0
18 ,382
50,248

142,289

30,610

(10 ,610 )  (10 ,610 )

1 1 , 0 0 0  1 1 , 0 0 0

235,002

390

390 JYU $ 390
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
JUSTICE ASS/STAA/CE GRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON.GAAP)
From lnception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit B-10

Project
Authorization

Current
Year

Total
to Date

Variance
Positive
Negative

Actual
Prior

Years

Revenues
Federal  funds st imulus
Federal  funds st imulus
Categorical grants

Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures
Other suppl ies
Smal l too ls
Service maintenance
Other

Total expenditures

Revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds

From general fund

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

16,997
94,192
27,652

1 0 0

138,941

1 ,800
105,663

6,050
28,502

16,997
94,192

16,997 $
94,192

(27,652)
( 1 0 0 )

1 1 1 , 1 8 9  1 1 1 , 1 8 9  ( 2 7 , 7 5 2 \

76,637 76,637
6,050 6,050

28,502 28,502

1 ,800
29,026

142,015

(3,074)

3,074

$ -

1 1 1 , 1 8 9  1 1 1 , 1 8 9  3 0 , 8 2 6

3,074

(3,074)

D -

u -:
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
CDBG. ALFRED STREET PROJECT FUND O5-C-1397
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, A'VD CHA'VGES IN FIJND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Exhibit B-11

From

Revenues
CDBG Funds

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Infrastructure improvements
Operating costs

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in (out)

From General Fund
To CDBG 5 Points Project Fund

Total

Excess of revenues and other
sources over expenditures

Fund balance
Beginning of year, July 1

End of year, June 30

and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Actual
Current

Year
Total

To Date

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

$  (1  19 ,089 )
(45s 000)

Project
Authorization

Prior
Years

$ 603,297
455 000

$ 427,529 56,679 $ 484,208

1,058,297 427,529 s6,679 484,208 (574.089)

163,921 26,869
991,447 400,659

1 ,155,368 427 ,528

(97 ,071)  1

136,089
4,596

140,685

(84,006)

162 958
405,255

568 ,213

(84,005)

963
586,1 92

R q 7  4  A A

t c , uoo

$  12 ,830

97 ,071_

97,071

o7 a7 , l

\ - v v ,

97,071
(236) (236)

e6,83s (236)

q___99,89q (84,006) $ _!.gqq

96,836

q,__1?,83q
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
SYNDER GREENWAY PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES.

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON.GAAP)
From lnception and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit B-12

Project
Authorization

Current
Year

Total
to Date

Variance
Positive
Negative

(22,260\

s_1q

Actual
Prior

Years

Revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Federal grant - nc dept of transportation

Total revenues

Expenditures
Public safety

Legal
Engineering
Advertising
Construction

Total expenditures

Revenues (under) expenditures

Other f inancing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds

From general fund

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

$ 225,000 $ 1 1 1 , 0 0 1  $ 1 1 1 , 0 0 1  $ ( 1 1 3 , 9 9 9 )

1  1  1  ,001 1  1  '1  
,00 ' t  (1  13 ,999)

150 '150 150
19,944 19,944 56

1 8 0  1 8 0
90,711 90,711 136,069

1  1 0 , 9 8 5  1  1 0 , 9 8 5 136,275

16 22 ,276

225,000

300
20,000

1 8 0
226,780

247,260

(22,260\

22,260

$ - 1 6

1 6

t o
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Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing
body is that the costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where
the governing body has decided that periodic determination of net income is
appropriate for accountabil ity purposes.

Water and Sewer Fund - This fund is used to account for the City's water
and sewer operations.

Electric Fund - This fund is used to account for the City's electric
operations.

Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Fund - This fund is used to account for the
City's landfi l l  operations.

Albemarle Department of Public Housing - This fund is used to account
for the City's public housing operations.



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES .

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON.GAAP)

Exhibit C-1
Page 1 of 3

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Revenues
Operating revenues

Water sales
Sewer charges
Water and sewer taps
Miscel laneous

Total operating revenues

Nonoperating revenues
Interest earned on investments
Donated assets
Grant revenues
Sale of assets

Total nonoperating revenues

Total revenues

Exoenditures
Water and Sewer Administraton

Salaries and employees benefits
Postage
Contracted services
Insurance
Uniforms
Other operating expenditures

Total

Water Treatment Plant
Salaries and employees benefits
Suppl ies
Reoairs
Contracted services
Utilities
Fuel
Other operatlng expenditures

Total

Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

6,476,300 6.369.815 (66,485)

$ 3 ,478,333 $
2,727,226

35,429
128,827

15,286
1,933,294

40,000
10,434

6.523.800

1 , 9 9 9 , 0 1 4

8,368,829

1 , 9 5 1 , 5 1 4

1,845,029

117  .104

58,286

47,500

846,200

410,147
42,732
69,960
90,348
17,262
98,647

729,096

735,297
257,418
76,093

122,643
253,104

12,233
110,726

1,567 ,5141,625,800
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AA'D EXPENDITURES.

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON.GAAP)

Exhibit C-l
Page 2 of 3

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Expenditures (continued)
Sewer Treatment Plant

Salaries and employees benefits
Suppl ies
Repairs
Contracted service
Utilities
Fuel
Other operating expenditures

Total

System Division
Salaries and employee benefits
Suppl ies
Reoairs
Utilities
Other operating expenditures

Governmental Fund

Debt Service
Principal on installment purchases
Interest and fees

Total

Capital Outlay
Water and sewer administration
Water treatment olant
Systems division

Total

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers (to) from other funds

To General Fund
To City Hall Project Fund
From Governmental Fund
Proceeds from installment debt

Total financing sources (uses) - net

Appropriated fund balance

Budget Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

4 . 1 1 3

761,282
111,014

1,006,047
5 1 , 8 7 0

177,762
2,531

1 5 5 , 7 3 1
2.270.350 2,266.237

1  , 1  0 9 , 1  6 3
99,473
30,677
6,906

82.431
1,380,600 1,328,650

1  0 6 , 1  6 1
35.712

149,700

80,760
135,000
345.1 00

141.873

560,860

6 , 8 3 3 , 5 1 0

(309,710)

(250,000)
(125,000)

46,760

(250,000)
(125,000)

1,922,481
46,295

1,593,776(328,240\

637,950

sl  B5o

7  A t7

80,621
114,440

6.565.434

1 3 9
20,560
8,097

28,796

268,076

1,803,395 2 , 1  1  3 , 1  0 5

1,922,481
(465)

1,922,016

(637,9s0)
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C'TY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
WATER AND SEWER FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES.

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit C-1
Page 3 of 3

Budget

$

Actual

$  3 , 3 9 7 , 1 7 1

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

$  3 , 3 9 7 , 1 7 1

Revenues and other sources (uses) over (under)
expenditures

Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual)
to full accrual basis

Net change in fund balance

Payment on installment purchases
Capital outlay
Depreciation
Capital lease proceeds
Increase in accrued compensated absences
Increase in postemployment benefits
Interest income Sewer Capital Project
Other investment Sewer Capital Project

Total reconciling items

Change in net assets

$  3 , 3 9 7 , 1 7 1

1 0 6 , 1 6 1
532,064

(1 ,417 ,450)
(46,2s5)
( 1 5 , 3 5 1 )

(122,145)
473

3,404

(95e,1 39)

$ 2,438,032
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CIW OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
SEWER CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AA'D EXPENDITURES.

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON.GAAP)

Exhibit C-2

From and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 2010

Actual Variance
Positive
Negative

Project
Authorization

Prior
Years

Current
Year

Total
to Date

Revenues
Restricted i ntergovernmental revenues

Rural Economic Development Grant
Water and sewer assessments
Interest earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures
Engineering
Construction costs
Other professional services

Total expenditures

Revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers from other funds

From water and sewer fund

Revenues and other sources (uses)
over (under) expenditures

$  100,000
24,500

124,500

22,800
3 1  1 , 3 0 0

11,797

345,897

$ 100,000
15,693
1,032

116,725

22,594
3 1 1 , 1 8 1

1 1 , 6 8 3

345,458

22,594
3 1 1 , 1 8 1

1  1 , 6 8 3

345,458 439

3,404
473

$ 100,000 $
19,097 (5 ,403)
1 ,505 1  ,505

120,602 (3,898)2 Q7-7

206
' l  19
1 1 4

(221,397\ (228,733) 3,877 (224.856\ (3.459)

221,397 233,643 233,643 12,246

$ _3p19 q  2 e 7 7
V  v ' v ,  , $ _!lqz
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE. NORTH CAROLINA
ELECTRIC FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AA'D EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON.GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit C-3
Page I of 2

Budget

$ - $ 14,055,495
13 ,591  ,651

747,O10
27,565,000 28,394,156

904,750 1,157,997

28,469,750 29,552,153

62,746
232,260
58,780

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

$

829,1 56

253,247

1,082,403

Actual

Revenues
Operating revenues

Residential sales
Commercial and industrial sales
Sales to City Departments

Total charges for services

Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

Nonoperating revenues
Interest earned on investments
Donated assets
Sale of assets

Total nonoperating revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures
Administrative and Finance

Salaries and employees benefits
Postage
Travel
Contracted services
Insurance
Other operating expenditures

Total

Customer Service
Salaries and employees benefits
Materials and supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Other operating expenditures

Total

Electric Ooerations
Salaries and employees benefits
Materials and supplies
Reoairs
Contract labor
Electric power purchases
Other operating expenditures

Total

1 19,000

28,588,750

1.076.900

186,850

353,786 234,786

29.905.939 1  , 3 1 7 , 1 8 9

773,196
38,257
4,286

31j02
42,209
84,116

973.1 66 103,734

1 6 1 , 0 5 7
10,287
4,892
8 , 8 1 4

185,050

1,306,328
599,1 56
62,458

586,597
23,374,734

253,579
26,182,852

1 , 8 0 0

357,34826,540,200
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
ELECTRIC FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AA/D EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON.GAAP)

Exhibit C-3
Page 2 of 2

For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Expenditures (continued)
Debt Service

Interest and other charges
Principal retirement

Total debt service

Capital Outlay
Administrative and fi nance
Electric ooerations

Total

Total exoenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer from (to) funds

General fund
City Hall project
General fund
To Governmental Fund
Proceeds from installment debt

Total other financing sources (uses)

Appropriated fund balance

Revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures,
other (uses) and appropriated fund balances

Reconcil iation from budgetary basis (modified accrual)
to full accrual basis

Net change in fund balance

Princioal retirement
Capital outlay
Depreciation
Increase in accrued comoensated absences
Increase in postemployment benefits
Capital lease proceeds

Total reconcil ing items

Change in net assets

Budget Actual

218,750

65,828
142,753

208,581

118,522
67,757

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

?o  A71

512,722

1 , 8 2 9 , 9 1 1

25,000

3 ,918 ,217
(581 )

3,942,636

(1,096,4s0)

1  0 ,1  69

225,950

28,248,650

340,100

(580,000)
(e15,000)

58,450

186,279

27,735.928

2,170,O11

25,000
(580,000)
(s15,000)

3,918,217
57.869

(1,436,550) 2,506,086

1,096,450

u - $ 4,676,097 $ 4,676.097

$ 4,676,097

142,753
186,279

(488,149)
(15,972)
(72,257)
(57,86s)

(305,215)

$__lizg,qg?
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE LANDFILL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES.

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON.GAAP)

Exhibit C-4
Page 1 of 2

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Revenues
Operating revenues

Disposal fees
Solid waste fees
Sales of mulch and scrao
Scrap tire and white goods fees

Total charges for services

Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

Nonoperating revenues
Interest earned on investments
Sale of assets
State Grant

Total nonoperating revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures
Landfil l  Operations

Salaries and employees benefits
Postage
Materials and supplies
Repairs
Util i t ies
Contracted services
lnsurance
Solid waste disposal fee
Other operating expenditures

Total

Debt Service
Principal on installmenl purchases
lnterest and fees

Total

Capi ta lOut lay

Total expenditures

Revenues over exoenditures

Budoet Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

$ 166,672
9,325

36 ,813
1 1 , 4 0 6

1 ,558
(18s,646)

(2,5e0)

(186,678)

6,883

$ 2,000,000
131 ,000
20,1  00
80,000

2,231,100

84,380

2,315,480

5,000
25,900
30,000

$ 2,166,672
140,325
56 ,913
91 ,406

2,509,041

6,558
(159,746)

27,410

2,455,316 224,216

53,725 (30,655)

193,561

60,900 (125,778)

2,376,380 2,383,263

634,079
446

199,464
240,963

7,068
335,935

43,570
129,273
1  1 3 , 9 1  1

1,686,880 1,704.709 (17,829\

434,000

53,880

2,174,760

390,1 67
39 ,819

429,986

49,790

2,184,485

4,O14

4,090

(9,725)

201,620 198,778 (2,842\
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE LANDFILL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON.GAAP)

Exhibit C-4
Page 2 of 2

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Other financing (uses) sources
Transfers to other funds

To General Fund
Proceeds from installment debt

Total other financing (uses)

Revenues and other sources over (under) expenditures,
other (uses)

Reconcil iation from budgetary basis (modifled accrual)
to full accrual basis

Net change in fund balance

Payment on installment purchases

Capi ta lout lay
Depreciation
Increase in accrued compensated absences
Capital lease proceeds

Increase in postemployment benefits
Interest income from Landfil l  Capital Project Fund
Adjustment to accrued landfil l  closure and postclosure costs

Total reconcil ing items

Change in net assets

(201,620) (201,852) (232)

$ _____G,024 s_G,024

Budoet+ Actual

(225,000)
23,380

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

Qs)t
(225,000)

23,148

$ (3,074)

390,1 67
49,790

(1e8,422)
(3 ,215 )

(23,148)
(20,64e)

44
(281  ,193 )

(86,626)

$__$gJqE
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
LANDFILL CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - PHASE II
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES A/VD EXPENDITURES .

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP)

Exhibit C-5

From

Revenues
Investment earnings

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfers from (to) other funds

From (to) Landfil l  Capital Reserve Fund
Proceeds from installment fi nancing

Total other financing sources

Revenues and other sources over
(under) expenditures and other (uses)

Fund balance
Beginning of year, July 1

End of year, June 30

and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 2010

Project
Authorization

Actual

s0,000

50,000

21 ,483

21 ,483

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

(28,473)

468,866

440,393

2 1 , 5 2 7

3,461,634

(3,44O,107)

Prior
Years

Current
Year

Total
to Date

21,527 (28,473\

44

3,930,500 3,424,332

(3,880,500) (3,402,849)

37,302

(37,258)

1,900,000 2,208,583
1,980,500 1,300,000

3,880,500

D -

3,508,583

L _!9J31

2,208,583
1,300,000

308,583
(680,s00)

3,508,583 (371,917)

$-----qryzq $ 68,476(37,258)

105,734

$ 68,476
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HOUSING
June 30,2010

Exhibit C-G

Department of Public Housing
Conventional Section 8 Capital Fund Totals

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable - net
Prepaid expenses
lnternal balances
Due to (from) other funds
Due from other governments

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets
CapitalAssets

Land
Construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of accumulated

deoreciation

Total noncurrent assets

TotalAssets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabi l i t ies
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Customer deoosits
Deferred revenues
Current portion of compensated absences

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued comoensated absences
Other postemployment benefits
Installment debt

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of debt
Unrestricted

1 ,1  00 ,087 396,602

- $ 1,444,817
- 35,795

3,589 7,725
_  1 , 5 9 8

(10,343)
8,335

'1 ,581 1,498,270

-  1 A ?  A n 4I  v v , v v v

273,446 273,446

5,778,151

273,446 6,215,102

$ 275,027 57,713,372

1 , 5 8 1 50,447
42,915

1,628

1 , 5 8 1 100,074

25,463
37,821
17,562

80,846

180,920

6,193,056
1,339,396

$ 1,046,062
35,718
4,136
1 , 5 5 5

12,616

$ 398,755 $
T I

4;
(2,273)

163,505

5,708,180

5 , 8 7 1 , 6 8 5

$ 6,971,772

J / , C J /

42,915
1,628

164,652

5,849,639
957,481

69,971

69,971

$_4QlZq

$  1 1 , 3 2 9

1 0 ;

11,429

3,2s8

14,687

69,971
3 8 1 , 9 1 5

87,064

22,205
37,821
17,562

77,588 3,258

1 , 5 8 1

273,446

Total net assets 6,807,120 451,886 273,446 7,532,452

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $--9,wlflz $_jl9giQzq $___qjp27 UlfrgZ
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AruD EXPENSES

Exhibit C-7

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HOUSING
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Department of Public Housino
Conventional Section 8 Caoital Fund Totals

Operating Revenues
Rental income
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Administrative
Tenant services
Uti l i t ies
Ordinary maintenance and operation
General expenses
Housing assistance payments
Nonroutine maintenance
Deoreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Operating subsidies
lnterest earned on investments
lnterest and other charges
Nonoperating revenue
Nonoperating expenses

Total nonoperating revenues

1,544,583

(879,300) (1,544,583)

$ 428,928
t z ,ooz

441,590

342,045
1 3 , 7 8 9

390,598
251,049
57,657

25,400
240,352

1,320,890

'161 ,356

1 , 6 2 ;
1 ,378,590

7,742

7,742

(7,742)

$ 428,928
12,662

441,590

511,143
1 3 , 7 8 9

390,598
251,049

59,279
1,378,590

25,400
243,367

2,873,215

(2,431,62s\

1 ,980,20 ' l
11 ,146

(160)

(822)

1 ,990,36s

(441,260)

1 ,117 ,235

- $

?  n l (

Net income (loss) before contributions and transfers (237,186) (204,074\

Capital grants
Transfers 848,864

848,864

6 1 1  , 6 7 8

6,195,442

Change in net assets

Net assets, June 30 $ 6,807,120

632,587
1 0 , 5 0 9

(160)

(822)

1,339,872
OJ ir

7,742

7,742

268,371

5,075

642,114 1,340,509

(204,074)

655,960

$ __ll]igq

1 , 1 1 7  , 2 3 5
(848,864)
268,371 1,117,235

675,975

6,856,477

$___ry$e $l,5n4a

Net assets, July '1

Page 80



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXqENDTTURES BUDGET AND ACTIJAL (NON-GAAq)

Exhibit C-8

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HOUSING. CONVENTIONAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Original
and Final
Budget

Variance
Favorable

Actual (Unfavorable)

$ 418,892 $ (4,108)
10,036 (9,344)

Operating Revenues
Rental income
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenditures
Administrative
Tenant services
Util i t ies
Ordinary maintenance and operation
General expenses
Nonroutine maintenance

Total operating expenditures

Operating revenues (under) operating expenditures

Nonoperating revenues
Operating subsidies
Capital lease proceeds
Other income
lnterest income

Total nonoperating revenues

Nonoperating expenditures
Debt princrpal payments
Debt interest expense
Capital outlay

Nonoperating revenues over nonoperating expenditures

Deficiency of revenues (under) expenditures

Appropriated fund balance

Excess of revenues and appropriated fund
balance (under) expenditures - modified accrual

Reconcil iation to the accrual basis:
Depreciation
Capi ta lout lay
Debt principal payments
Capital lease proceeds
Accrual of compensated balances
Other postemployment benefits
Capital fund transfer to Conventional

Change in net income before capital contributions and transfers - Exhibrt C-9

1 1 8 3 , 5 6 0

(741,180\

579,820
23 380
23,880
13,320

640,400

1,500
500

35,930

?oe

340
3,443

42.687602,470 645,157

(138 ,710 )  16 ,160  154 ,870

3 1 7 , 6 1 0
16,000

398,400
256,950
161 ,600
33,000

423,000

442,380 428,928

253,971
13 ,789

390,598
219,235
154,932
25,400

1,057,925

(628 997)

632,587
23,148
I  z , ooz

10 ,509

A7e OnA

1 J 0 2
t o u

32,487

(13,452)

2 ,211
7,802

'2,7 7 4 E,

6 668
7 600

125,635

112,183

52,767
(232)

(11,218)
l )  A 1 ' 1 \

1 3 8 , 7 1 0

$ -

(138 ,710 )

$  1 6 , 1 6 01 6  1 6 0

(24O,352)
32,487

1 ,102
(23,148)

(4  510 )
(18,925)
848,864

$  6 1 1 , 6 7 8
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA Exhibit C-9
SoHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDTTURES BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAq)
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HOUSING. SECT'O/V 8
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Section 8
Original

and
Variance
Favorable

Operating Revenues
Operating subsidiaries

Total operating revenues

Operating expenditures
Admrnistrative
Housing assistance payments

Nonoperating revenues
Interest income

1,406,864 1,378,590 28.274

Total operating expenditures 1 ,580,514 1 ,541,568 38 ,946

Operat ing revenues (under) operat ing expenditures (259,050) (20 j ,696) 57,354

Final Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$  1 ,321,464 $  1 ,339,872 $  18 ,408

1,321,464 1,339,872 18,408

173,650 162,978 10,672

1,700 637 (1 ,063)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues under expenditures
modif ied accrual $ (257,350) (201,059) $ 56,291

Reconciliation to the accrual basis.
Depreciat ion (3,015)

Change in net assets Schedule 24 $ (204,074)
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT AND CERTIFICATION OF ACTUAL CAPITAL FUND COSTS
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HOUSING. CONVENTIONAL
AN N UAL CONTRIBUT'ONS CONTRACT 4.1 974

Exhibit C-I0

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

1. The actual modernization costs of NC 19P07550'106 are as follows:

Funds approved
Funds expended

Excess of funds approved

Funds advanced - HUD Grants
Funds expended

Excess of funds advanced

Total

3 1 6 , 6 9 0
3 1 6 , 6 9 0

$ 316,690
316,690

q
v -
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT AND CERTIFICATION OF ACTUAL CAPITAL FUND COSTS . UNCOMPLETED
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HOUSING. CONVENTIONAL
AN N UAL CONTRI BUZO'VS CONTRACT A.1 974
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Exhibit C-11

The actual modernization costs of NC 19P07550108 are as follows:

Funds approved
Funds expended

Excess of funds approved

Funds advanced - HUD Grants
Funds expended

Excess of funds advanced

Costs audited during the current audit period totaled $-0-

Total

$ 362,203

$ 362,203
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CITY OF A,LBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT AND CERTIFICATION OF ACTUAL CAPITAL FUND COSTS . UNCOMPLETED
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HOUSING. CONVENTIONAL
AN N U A L CO NT RI B UT'O'VS CO NTRACT A.1 97 4
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit C-12

The actual modernization costs of NC 19P07550109 are as follows:

Funds approved
Funds expended

Excess of funds approved

Funds advanced - HUD Grants
Funds expended

Excess of funds advanced

Costs audited during the current audit period totaled $ 458,477.

Total

$ 458,477
458,477

458,477
458,477

2 .
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT AND CERTIFICATION OF ACTUAL CAPITAL FUND COSTS - UNCOMPLETED
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HOUSING. CONVENTIONAL
AN N UAL CONTRI B UT'O'VS CONTRACT A.1 974
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

Exhibit C-l3

The actual modernization costs of NC 19P075501-09 are as follows:

Funds approved
Funds expended

Excess of funds approved

Funds advanced - HUD Grants
Funds expended

Excess of funds advanced

Costs audited during the current audit period totaled $-0-

Total

$ 356,607

356,607

2 .
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT AND CERTIFICATION OF ACTUAL CAPITAL FUND COSTS . UNCOMPLETED
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HOUSING. CONVENTIONAL
AN N UAL CONTRI BUI'OAIS CONTRACT A-1 974
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit C-14

The actual modernization costs of NC 19P07550107 are as follows:

Funds approved
Funds expended

Excess of funds approved

Funds advanced - HUD Grants
Funds expended

Excess of funds advanced

Costs audited during the current audit period totaled $349,858

Total

363,045
363,045

363,045
363,045

2 .
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
STATEMENT AND CERTIFICATION OF ACTUAL CAPITAL
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HOUSING - CONVENTIONAL
AN N UAL CONTRI B UT'O'VS CONTRACT A.1 974

Exhibit C-15
FUND COSTS

UNCOMPLETED
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2010

The actualmodernizat ion costs of NC 19P075501-10 are as fol lows:

Funds approved
Funds expended

Excess of funds approved

Funds advanced - HUD Grants
Funds expended

Excess of funds advanced

Cost audited during the current audit period totaled $0.

Total

352,334

352,334
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Agency Fund

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for
individual and/or other governments.

Municipal Seruice District Fund - This fund accounts for taxes assessed
from taxpayers in a special area for downtown development for that area.



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHAA'GES 'A' ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit D-1

Balance
J u l y  1 , 2 0 0 9 Additions Deductions

Balance
June  30 ,  2010

627 $ 42,906 $ 4 1 7
o z (  D 4 1 7

627 42,696 42,906 4 1 7

o z l q__4f9q 42,906 $ 4 1 7

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITIES

Due to agencies
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Other Schedules

This section includes additional information on property taxes.

. Schedule of Ad Valorem laxes Receivable

. Analysrb of Current Tax Levy



CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE
June 30, 2010

Exhibit E-l

FiscalYear

2009-2010
2008-2009
2007-2008
2006-2007
2005-2006
2004-2005
2003-2004
2002-2003
2001-2002
2000-2001
1 999-2000

241,74;
67,753
52,325
40,670
36,267
22,934
33,396
17,354
15,272
11,746

$ 5 ,675,031
429
364
364

$ 5,386,288
123,360
1 8 , 2 0 9
1 0 , 7 0 0
6,584
3,671
1 , 8 9 3
1 , 7 7 5

763
387

11,746

Uncollected
Balance

June 30, 2009
Collections

Additions and Credits

Uncollected
Balance

June 30 ,  2010

$ 288,743
1  1 8 , 8 1 6
49,908
4 1 , 9 8 9
34,086
32,596
2 1 , 0 4 1
31,621
1 6 , 5 9 1
14,885

q___Q9r91$ 5 ,676,188 $ 5 ,565.376 ocu,^z /o

(104,000)

s___!19,22q

$ 5,554,762

30,1  86
5 , 6 1 4

11,352
(36,538)

$  5 ,565,376

Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts
Ad valorem taxes receivable

Ad valorem taxes receivable - net

Reconcilement with revenues
Ad valorem taxes collected - General Fund
Discounts allowed
Releases and adjustments
Taxes written off
Interest collected

Total collections and credits
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
ANATYS'S OF CURRENT TAX LEW
CITY.WIDE LEW
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Exhibit E-2

City-Wide

Total Levy
Property
excluding
Registered Registered

Property
Valuation

Total
Levy

$ 5,554,698
2,307

138,552

Motor
Vehicles

Motor
VehiclesRate

Original Levy:
Property taxes at current year's rate
Penalties

Total

Discoveries:
Current year taxes
Penalties

Total

Abatements:

Totalvaluat ion

Net levy

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 20'10

Current year's taxes collected

Current levy collection percentage

$  9 9 1  , 9 1 0 , 3 5 7

99 '1  ,910,357

24,741,429

24,741.429

(3,665,357)

012,986,429

5,557,005 5 ,072,410

56

56

$  5 ,070 ,103
2,307

137,765

$ 484,s95

484,595

787

138,552 137 ,765 787

(20,526) (12,360) (8,166)

$ 1

5,675,031

(288,743)

wi99,2qq

943L%

5 , 1 9 7 , 8 1 5

(228,994\

q4q9,8?1

95t9%

477,216

(59,749)

g_j1lt67

SLAB%
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Compliance Section



ANDERSON SMITH &  WIKE  PLLC
C e r t ifie d Pub lic Ac c ountant s

220 Eact Washington Street
Post Office Box 697

Rockingham. North Carol ina 28380
(910)  895-2899

154 South Harbor Watch Drive
Statesvil le, North Carolina 28377

( 704 )  562-5039

7 l - l  Sourh  Main  Sr rccr
llcritagc I lousc

Laurinburg. Nonh Carol ina 2ul j2

\910)  277-2795

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance

with G ove rn m e n t Aud iti ng Sfandards

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Albemarle, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the busrness-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregated remaining fund information of the City of Albemarle, North Carolina, as of and for tne yeai
ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprises the City of Albemarte, North Carotrna s basrc
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25,2010 We drd not audit thefinancial statements of the Albemarle ABC Board and the Albemarle Downtown Devetopment
Corporation. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose repofts thereon havebeen furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it related to the amounts rncluded for the Albemarle
ABC Board and the Albemarle Downtown Development Corporation is based solely on the reports ofthe other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generarry accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial a,Iotts contarned rnGovernment Auditing Sfandards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States The financral
statements of the Albemarle ABC Board and the Albemarle Downtown Development Corporatron werenot audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Albemarle's internat control overfinancial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the prrpor. of 
""pr".rrg-o*oplnions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an optnron on theeffectiveness of the City of Albemarle's internal control over financial reporting. Accororngty, we do notexpress an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over finaricial reportrng.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management oremployees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detectmisstatements on a timely basis. A significant^deficiency is i control deficiency,'o, .o,.,.'o,n"tron ofcontrol deficiencies, that adversely affects the City's ability to initiate authorrze, recoro process orreport financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting princrptes such thatthere is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the City's finanial statements that jsmore than inconseguential will not be prevented or detected by the City's rnternat controt

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficrencres, that results rnmore than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements wrll not beprevented or detected by the City's internal controt.

Page g2
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Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose descrrbed
in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined on the preceding page.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Albemarle's financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncomplrance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts, However, providrng an optnton on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are reguired to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and whrch are described rn the
accompanying schedule of f indings and responses as Finding 20, l0- i

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others
within the organization, members of City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
panres.

".Duikr pccQ
October 25,2010

Page 93



A N D E R S O N  S M I T H  &  W I K E  P
C er tifie d Publ ic Ac c ountant s

120 East Washington Street
Post Ofllce Box 697

Rockingham, North Carolina 28380
(9r0)  895-2899

154 South l-larbor Watch Drive
Statesvi l le, North C zirol ina 28377

(70.1) 562-5039

713 South  Main  Sr rccr
l ler i tage l louse

Laurinburg. Norrh ( 'arol ina 2l i l52
(9tot 27.7-2-195

Page 94

Report on Compliance w_ith Requirements Applicable to Each Major Federal program
and Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance witn OMB Circutar A-133

and the State Single Audit tmplementation Act

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Albemarle, North Carolina

Compliance

we have audited the compliance of the City of Albemarle, North Carolina wrth the types of comptrancerequlrements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget fOni6l Circutar A-133Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manuatfor Gove-rnmenta! Auditors-in Nirtn drrot,n", rssued bythe Local Government commission, that are applicable to each of its major reoerat programs for theyear ended June 30, 2010. The City of Albemarle's major federal prograri-"ie rdentified in thesummary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule or iino'ings ano !uestroned costscompliance with the requirements of laws, regutaiions, c-ontracts and grants-rppri""ir" to each of rtsmajor federal programs is the responsibility or tne city of Albemarle'r r-anagerdnt. b' responsibrtityls to express an opinion on the City of Albemarle's compliance based on ouriudit.

we conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepred rn theUnited States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits cjntaineo n GovernmentAuditing Sfandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Uniteo States; ino Orvrg Circutar A_133Audits of Sfafes, Locat Governments, and No-n-Profit organizatrons ano tne-5iate Singte Audrtlmplementation Act. Those standards, oMB circular- A-rsg, and tne 
-siaie 

srngte Audrtlmplementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain r""ron"ut" assurance aboutwhether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to aoove tnat coutd have adirect and material effect on a major federal piogram occurred. An audit lncruJes examrnrng, on a testbasis, evidence about the city of Albemarle's compliance with those requirem"nil 
"no 

performrngsuch other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.' we believe that our audrtprovrdes a reasonable basis for our opinion our audit does not provide a legal determination on theCity of Albemarle's compliance with those requirements

In our opinion, the city of Albemarle complied in al l  material respects, wrth the requrrements referredto above that are applicable to each of its major federal program for the year ended June 30 2010

Member American Institute of Certified public Accountants North Carol ina Association 
"rffiWWW. ari\\ '-Cl)lr. COm



lnternal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Albemarle is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with require-ments of laws, regulations, contracts and grantslpplicable
to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Cit! of Atbemarle s
internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and maierial effect on a
major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of rnt6rnal
control over compliance, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Crtv s
internal control over comolrance

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the destgn or operatron
of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that
there ts more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requrrement of a
federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City s
internal control

A mater ial  weakness ts a signi f icant def ic iency, or combinat ion of s igni f icant defrcrencres, that results rn
more than a remote likelihood that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requrrement of
a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the City's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the flrst
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficienctes In rnternal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report  is intended solely for the information and use of the audit  committee, management.  others
within the organization, members of City Council, and federal and State awarding agenlres and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone othei th-an these specrfied
oanres.

U,tqPctq
October 25,2010

Page 95



ANDERSON SMITH &  WIKE  PLLC
C e rtifie d Pub I ic Ac c ount ant s

ll0 East Washington Street
Post Otlice Box 697

Rockingham, North Carolina 28380
(910) 895-2899

154 South Harbor Watch Drive
Statesvi l le, North Carol ina 28377

(704) 562--i039

7 l i  South  Main  Sr recr
Heritage llousc

l,aurinbulg. Norrh Carol ina 2l{3S2
(91{J) 277-2795

Page 96

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major State Program and Internai
Control Over Compliance in Accordance with Applicable Sectrons of OMB Circular A-133

and the State Single Audit lmplementation Act

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Albemarle, North Carolina

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of City of Albemarle, North Carolina with the types of comptiance
requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, tssued by the
Local Government Commission, that are applicable to each of its major State programs for the year
ended June 30,2010. Tfe City of Albemarle'l miJgr State programs are rdentified in the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and guestioned costs Compliance wlth
the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major State program rs the
responsibility of City of Albemarle's management. Our responsibility is to express an optnron ori tne City of
Albemarle's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audtttng
Sfandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and applicable sections of OMd
Circular A-133, as described in the Audit Manual for Governmentat Auditors in North Carotrna. and the
State Single Audit lmplementation Act. Those standards, applicable sections of OMB Circutar A-133 and
the State Single Audit lmplementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtarn reasonabte
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compilance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program occurred An auort Inctudes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Albemarle's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on City
of Albemarle's compliance with those requirements

In our opinion, City of Albemarle complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to its major State program for the year ended June 30, 2010

lnternal Control Over Compliance

The management of City of Albemarle is responsible for establishing and marntainrng effective internat
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants ipplicable to Stateprograms. In planning and performing our audit, we considered City of Albemarle's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program In
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on comprrance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over comptrance
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's rnternal controt over
compliance.

Member American Institute of Certified Public Accountants North Carolina Association of Certified publii Accounranrs
www. a s\v-c nJ. com



A-control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of pErforming their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requiremeit of a
State program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combtnation of
control deficiencies that adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a Stati program such that
there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
State program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the City,s rnternal
control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies that resutts in
more than a remote likelihood that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a State program will not be prevented or detected by the city's internal control

Our considerat ion of internal control  over compl iance was for the l imrted purpose described rn the f i rst
paragraph of this sect ion and would not necessari ly ident i fy al l  def ic iencies rn internal control  that mrght
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses We drd not identify any deficrencies in rnterial
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others
within the organization, members of City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone otnei tnLn these specified
oarties.

A*ilt*€",fi^*uu\kt Pr.t
October 25,2010
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CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Section | - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: tJnquatified

Internal control over financial reporting:

o Materialweakness(es) identified? No

. Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be materialweaknesses No

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted yes

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

. Materialweakness(es) identified? No

. Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be materialweaknesses None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: lJnquatified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133 No

ldentification of major federal program:

CFDA Numbers Names of Federal  Proqram

14.872 Publ ic Housing Capitat  Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs $ 300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
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(Continued)
CITY OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

State Awards

Internal control over major State programs:

. Materialweakness(es) identified? No

. Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be materialweaknesses None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major State programs: tJnqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with State Single Audit
lmplementation Act No

ldentification of major State program:

NC Parks and Recreation Trust Fund

Sect ion l l -  Financial  Statement Findings

MATERIAL NONCOMPLIANCE

criteria: 
:;'o,1?: fl?f,1il:iff:i!?"ffJ:.fff?i:'i,t1i:ffiH".:j'a 'oca' sovernment

Condit ion: The City of Albemarle expended $17,829 more for landf i l loperat ions in the Landf i l l
Fund than was appropriated in the annual budget ordinance.

Effect: Moneys were spent that had not been appropriated.

Cause: The City expended more than had been budgeted for in the budget ordinance and a
Budget amendment was not adopted.

Recommendation: 
$lt"T,il"JflT;Jf,,.Jl""l!,.n:ffi-d 

berore expenditures exceeded budseted

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions. The City agrees with this finding. Budget
Amendments will be adopted prior to making expenditures that exceed budgeted amounts.

Section lll- Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reoorted

Section lV - State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reoorted
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CIW OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Section ll- Financial Statement Findings

Finding 2O'10-'l

Name of contact person: Colleen C. Jones, Finance Officer

Corrective Action: Management will review a budget-to-actual report prepared by the finance
officer at each monthly board meeting. Budget amendments will be maoe
as necessary.

Proposed Completion Date: Management will implement the above procedure at their December
meetrng.
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CIW OF ALBEMARLE, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDIIURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2O1O

Grantor/Pass-through
Grantor/Proqram title

U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed{hrough the N.C. Department of Transportation

Enhancement Agreement - Greenway Phase ll

U.S. Department of Homeland Securitv
Assistance lo Firefighters Grant Program

U.S. Deoartment of Housinq & Urban Development
Direct Grant:

Low Income Housing.
Public and Indian Housing Operating Subsidres

Section 8:
Housing Choice Vouchers

Public Housing Capital Fund:
NC1 9PO7550106
NC1 9PO75501 07
NC1 9PO75501 09

Passed-through the N.C. Department of Commerce
CDBG/Alfred Street Concentrated needs
CDBG/Chase Morrow project

U.S. Deoartment of Justice
Justice Assistance Grant
Justice Assistance Grant - Recoverv

Total assistance federal programs

STATE GRANTS
Cash Assistance

N.C. Rural Economic Develooment Center
Rural Develooment Grant
Water Quality Grant

N.C. Deoartment of Environmental & Natural Resources
Division of Waste Manaoement

White Goods Grant
N.C. Clean Water Management Trust Fund
Recycling Grant

N.C. Parks and Recreation Authoritv:
N.C. Parks and Recreation Trust Fund

N.C. Department of Transportation
Powell  Bi l l
Synder Greenway project
Bike Grant

Total assistance state programs

State/
Federal Pass-through
CFDA Grantor's

Number Number

Federal
Direct & -

Pass-through
Expenditures

State Local
Expenditures Expenditures

20.205

97.044

E-4129

14.850

14.871

14.872
14.872
14.872

14.228 05-C-1397
14.228

16.580
16 804

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

9.9000

1 ,090,017

1,541,569

316,690
349,858
458,477

140,685
3 0 , 6 1 0

16,997
94,192

4,043.020

1,003

z.vzz

N/A
N/A

20,927
40,000

2,265
34,1  1  5
25,145

874,409

479,256
1 1 0 , 9 8 5
24.993

N/A
N/A
N/A

1 . 6 1 2 , 0 9 5

Total assistance

Note to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards:

$  4 ,043,020 $  1 .612,095 S -

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards includes the federal and State grant activity
of the City of Albemarle and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule
is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audlts of Sfates, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations and the Sfafe Stng/e Audit lmplementation Acf. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in, the preparation of the basic financial statements.
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